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Mission
N1

HKIRC is a not-for-profit organisation that is
committed to providing, and supervising the
provision of “.hk” and “.&®” Internet domain
names registration, resolution and related services
in an uninterrupted, effective, customer-centric and
sustainable manner. In addition, HKIRC promotes
Hong Kong as an inclusive, secure, innovative and
international city for the Internet and encourages the
use of Internet and the related technologies.
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Chairman’s Statement

ERERE

Supporting digital transformation
to promote Hong Kong

as an international

innovation and technology hub

%D EMIEEE
BBE SRR IRALARH D

Chairman /&

Mr Simon,
CHAN Sai Ming, BBS, JP

PRAMEA S 4 |, BBS, JP

2022 marked the 20th anniversary of HKIRC. Thanks to the
guidance and support of the Government, the sector and former
Chairmen and Directors, HKIRC has effectively accomplished
its tasks and fulfilled its mission. We would like to take this
opportunity to express our sincere gratitude to all parties.

Amid the pandemic in the past three years, HKIRC has not
forgotten its mission, navigated through the difficult times with
Hong Kong people together and actively promoted business
expansion. The “.hk” domain name has continued to become
an iconic local brand image, well-acclaimed by businesses
and individual users who have shifted their focus towards the
online shopping market; meanwhile, HKIRC has also provided
greater support for SMEs by proactively assisting them in their
digital transformation and therefore promoting the economic and
trade development of Hong Kong. HKIRC has been promoting
the multiple advantages of “.hk” domain names to the business
community and the public, attracting companies to use “.hk” when
tapping into the e-commerce market. As a result, the number of
“.hk” users has been on the rise for the past 20 years and has
remained stable during the economic downturn, reflecting the
support for and trust in “.hk” of various communities. HKIRC
will also take up the mission by providing a full suite of reliable
“.hk” domain name services, playing as a platform representing
Hong Kong that serves the Hong Kong-based companies to yield
brilliant results in various fields.

2022 HKIRCAK W —+EFE » BREFT
¥ARFEEESERIFMNESTNIREHET R -
HKIRCA 86 B e TEFIE & - fE UL XA
BRHBABREE -

RE=ZFZE  HKIRCIA T =fEwm » ER
HOFAHEEBART  BEREDEBKHE -
[.hk] B BER AT RETERE  FRE
BRNETMSHIHERALRBEARAPED : A
HKIRCthig b ¥/ NEB IR - B 1% Bt 1P
EITEIGEA - HHFBMLEER - HKIRC
—HABAMAREE k| HENZEERS
WalEEMAEFEHEMISREMA hk] - BUE
[hk ] EBFEFHEBE20F—E EF » ELEHK
TTRNREBEE  REALSSAE hkHX
BAEE - HKIRC N an - BERET
Z AEM kI HERE  EA—EREEE

BWTE  REBNOREETREN LAKSR
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Since its inception, HKIRC has been encouraging the public to
make use of the Internet to develop e-commerce, which is in
line with the Government's efforts to develop Hong Kong into
an international innovation and technology hub. Against this
backdrop, the Domain Name System managed by HKIRC serves
as the infrastructure of the Internet world, connecting users with
the Internet and laying an important cornerstone of e-commerce.
However, with increasingly frequent cyberattacks, HKIRC, as a
player in the sector, undertakes its responsibilities to contribute
to safeguarding cyber security. Over the past few years, we have
been actively advocating the importance of cyber security, from
assisting the business community in dealing with cyber security
threats to providing training resources, in the hope of spreading
cyber security awareness and protecting the interests of the Hong
Kong Internet community to the greatest extent.

We have learnt from the experience accumulated in the past that
the best way to deal with cyber threats is to take a proactive
approach by optimising and upgrading systems and enhancing
security awareness in advance to eliminate any loophole that
may be taken advantage of by lawbreakers. As such, HKIRC,
with its professional and reliable team, will further provide
improvement suggestions to enterprises’ websites, thus blocking
the avenues open to attackers to launch their attacks. HKIRC
has always been committed to the security of the Internet as its
primary goal, and therefore provides free website security scan
service to protect “.hk” users’ online safety, and the number of
organisations receiving free website scans continues to increase
every year; in addition, we will allocate additional resources
to provide free cyber security training content for enterprises
to use, and prepare a Cybersec Training Hub CyberHub.hk
for SMEs to provide advice on the security risks in their daily
work from the perspective of employees in different positions in
various industries, and provide appropriate training content with
a focus on enhancing relevant cyber security awareness, thereby
benefiting more enterprises. Tens of thousands of employees
have completed the training within six months since the launch of
the project. Meanwhile, Cybersec Infohub, jointly established by
HKIRC and OGCIO, has also been serving as a bridge between
the industry and exchanging the latest security information, which
is well received from all sectors, especially in the banking sector.
The number of its members has also increased significantly by
5 times since its inception, reflecting the deep thirst for cyber
security information in the community. In the long run, we hope to
provide better protection and safer cyberspace for all “.hk” users
to address increasing cyber security threats.

Chairman’s Statement

ERE®E

HKIRC B B3 AR —E B B T R R R 5 A & 5
#® ERETEE  HEFENESHEEKAE
BRAIRP ORES ML —8 - TEXNBET |
HKIRCEREEMEZEZHIERTBAEHERY
HEEIS  BESRREAFPNER  fJEBEES
FTHEMNEBZER - R > WBIEKXBEAFEE
BA¥R—BHKIRCHEEZE  BMHhATHE
PR 2EHER - BEHRT  BREHABE
PMEZ - WHPEREHREL2EE R
HEFNER  FEEEPELT2THE REE
N A NS #e BB B BB B FZS -

BEAZEMERBERMTRY  EHEKRER
BRENMERRREBDERARE - BLAELH
RMEFMBIEZEEH  STEZEEA R
o HRRI  HKIRCEAKRECEFE—F
REFHE NEMNERATENPEEENES
B mEEREEESHRENRE - HKIRC
—ABNNEBENETE2AEZEEE  FTA—&
Al hk] BERH2ERBL2RHRG - RE
WL r  BFEICBRLRIENZEREIT
BB BN TMGEBEINER - REREM
PR 2EINDTEER - EF—@AF /D
R L2 8 T & CyberHub.hk
METEEFRBUMNETAZEYE  BRET
EBHMNEZERAKRIELER @ REETHEIIR
N BRREFHEBORELZERE  #NSES
WEETE HEMEEXFEAHUETHET
SEREE o B EE - HKIRCEOGCIOA 1
Cybersec Infohub7i—H B ER 2 EHBRE
A BERsEHTEEH  AZERE - ERTT
AP LHEESERTE  MES 8 ABUMER I YIE
Kig EFASRE R4S EHRBELE2EMD
WRRY) - REWEAEMA Nk AP RER
ENREMNE L 2B - LB B8N
NBBREEEE -

HEOBEATMERAERAA 2022 FEHRE
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Chairman’s Statement

ERE®mE

Nowadays, the young generation has access to the Internet
from an early age, thus training students on cyber security is
also an important part of HKIRC's mission. In terms of student
training, HKIRC used to focus on secondary school students, but
since last year it has also broadened its target to primary school
students, with a view to providing appropriate training as early as
possible by instilling knowledge and awareness of cyber security
in a fun way. In addition to primary school students, we continued
to promote our Cyber Youth Programme among senior secondary
school students this year, providing them with practical and
professional knowledge to inspire them to join the sector in the
future and inject new blood into the scarce cyber security talent
pool.

With the digital transformation across various industries, the
demand for domain name services is expected to increase; and
due to increasingly frequent cyber security threats, we believe
that more challenges will come HKIRC's way. However, with the
support of the Government and the industry together with the
collaboration across HKIRC, we will overcome all difficulties.

The National 14th Five-Year Plan has positioned Hong Kong as
an international innovation and technology hub, together with
the Blueprint for the development of innovation and technology
in Hong Kong previously mentioned by the government, HKIRC
will actively participate in the joint construction and development
of what Hong Kong’s Internet needs for the implementation of
relevant measures. HKIRC will take actions in various aspects:
to support start-ups and SMEs to enhance their understanding
and awareness of cyber security and enhance the security in the
Internet world by providing free cyber scanning, cyber security
training and information platforms; to help the new generation
adapt to the digital era through internship programmes, youth
programmes and others, and to inspire and cultivate young
talents from primary and secondary schools. HKIRC will also
provide a robust network system and maintain online status to
ensure the stable and organised development of e-commerce;
deepen its relationship with the international Internet industry,
engage in more exchanges and cooperation, promote the
advantages of the “.hk”, and respond to the directions set out in
the Blueprint; deepen our collaboration with the government and
the sector to invest more in broadening cybersecurity services
and expanding the promotion of web accessibility and digital
inclusion; and encourage youth participation online in a right
manner, so as to contribute to Hong Kong’s positioning as an
international innovation and technology hub.

| would also like to express my appreciation and gratitude to
the Directors for their confidence and our members, business
partners and all “.hk” domain name holders for their support in
the past, and look forward to a brighter and more prosperous
decade ahead.

p -

WESFERNHRKNEBREE  ALYa4E
TRE LT 2EIMEHKIRCHES Fam - BE
HKIRCHZ2AFIIEFREFR24EH L MA X
FRITBEHEENEE  DBKE A ER RS
ZERMBNEE - 5 LR IRMBEINE
BEeoBRT/NBEIN  SENRGEEBRBENTM
BEASTELHERESFNE - BEER -
BEMME - RBBMERIETER  FEAH
BAOBELTE AT EEIATNE -

HKIRCTEHHEASTSXERYHHAL Mg
IR ZRBEEERAER » RNSBET2EEN
BB MEBIEE  HKIRCTIBEEYHES - 8
SRS - BAREERT - ERANIET - Lt
HKIRCET@EAOAE  — MBI M
fiF o

BER+MARSEBEEEMARBEREAHH
D MEBFREAHRHACEBFBIRERE
E) - HKIRCHEREGTHEERE LiE - KA
EARERBEBEBMEAME  LUEEMREBEE -
HKIRCEBEEZ HFEETF  ERHEEBNHES
B BELT2HIFEN TS  ZEDAIRE
M/ Nroa b g 2 MIBHMRA - AR
BEATANZ2E  SRAEEHE - SFHEE
B —REESSFR - RENEER/ NEFE
AA - MHKIRCE S M e REBRESL RS
BRETHEEREBEER  URRCHBEKE
BREERNBAR  ETEZHRIRAE  AINE
Bl hk]HEZSE  DECER)MEEBEFR I
HEFRERBESE  BHELER  RMEHE
LR R EASKEREREEIE AR
B ARIESEEF EHRS MBI R 2 SR
BEBBEREREIRIF O EMIELER

AATRLEHEEP  RAE - SEBH UKk
FRA T .hk ] HRFENBENS AR EIEL
BRI BRAENBRER -
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CEO 71T 4B

Ir Wilson,
WONG Ka Wai

EXRETLIZRD

In the year of 2022 when Hong Kong returned to normal gradually,
various sectors in the society have been adapting to the impact
caused by the COVID-19 pandemic, and accelerating the pace
of digital transformation. Meanwhile, under the leadership of the
government, vigorous efforts have been made in the construction
of a smart city which helps Hong Kong ride out the pandemic
with greater strength. In response to the broader changes, HKIRC
has successively launched different support services, aiming to
provide the most appropriate services for the business community
and the public in Hong Kong, and to live out the Company’s
philosophy and public mission.

During the past year, HKIRC continued to offer professional
and reliable services consistently, providing continuous domain
name system services for “.hk” users in Hong Kong and creating
a benign network business environment. Amid swift digital
transformation process, HKIRC spared no effort to improve the
quality of its existing services to ensure that Hong Kong people
can enjoy the economic benefits brought by digitalisation. While
driving the progress of the society, digital transformation however
also entails high risk of network crisis, which threatens the
interests of the public.

CEOQO’s Statement
ITHARERE

20226 REBZFLEMENN—F  HEET
BEERTRIENEE  MRTHBELN T
% ARERFHORET - KOHEESHEZMMH
2 EEEN ZERBERREBIH - MEA

RIFEMEE - HKIRCARAHE AR R SR RS -
EEATERM TREHSKEINRE - 1T

HEBRHRATNESFAREMD o

HEBE—F  HKIRCEEBE—ENHEEMASE
fR7 - AZ2EN[ . hk] AP RHEERNE MR R
GRS - ITERITMAKBERIIRE - AHRERN
HISEAERE - HKIRCHTELR 2 - SR
REMRBEZR  HERBEMREAZZEH L
EREEBERR - SUEHEAEE R AT S H S
¥ BNEREBRGENRGEEH  BREEKX

RE S o

EBORAZMERERAT 2022 FEHSE
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CEO’s Statement

THRE®RE

Last year, HKIRC conducted a study themed “Security Awareness
of Emerging Cyber Risks”, which interviewed more than 800
enterprises from various sectors and of different sizes in Hong
Kong in the form of questionnaire. It was found that most of the
respondent enterprises (81%) did not provide cyber security
training for their employees, a majority of which were SMEs.
Obviously, SMEs were more vulnerable since a smaller scale
and insufficient funds made it difficult for them to allocate
additional resources to fund appropriate training for employees.
On the verge of digital transformation, such enterprises, which
were underprepared, would bear the brunt of crimes. It shows
that enterprises really need to strengthen staff training, gain
access to more relevant information and keep vigilant to deal
with the ever-changing cyber security threats. To draw the
attention of enterprises and the public to cyber security, HKIRC
launched a number of related projects last year, which were
designed to strengthen the cybersecurity awareness of different
target groups, laying a important foundation for promoting the
development of online businesses in Hong Kong as well as
cultivating talents in the long run.

One of the key projects is the Cybersec Training Hub, which is
specially designed to address the industry pain point of a lack of
training resources for SMEs. It was launched in August 2022 to
provide free and basic cyber security training for employees of
enterprises and improve their awareness of cyber security threats
which they face in daily work. The simple, easy-to-understand
and practical training content is well-received among users. To
date, it has been adopted by over 35,000 users, with encouraging
results.

On the other hand, following its first launch in 2021, the “Cyber
Youth Programme”, which returned with great success last year,
attracted nearly 400 senior students from over one hundred
secondary schools, with overwhelming responses. The cyber
security training course, which is conducted and prepared
by industry experts, allowed students to obtain recognised
certificates after completing the course, thus deepening the
results of education.

HKIRC has taken a further step to expand the service target of
the programme from secondary school students to primary school
students. With interesting cyber security games and comics,
primary school students could learn with fun, and understand
the importance of cyber security in their growing-up stage, with
the hope of laying a solid foundation at an early stage to defend
against cyber attacks.

EFHKIRCHLETT T — IR DA [ $37 H A 45 R B 1
ZEEH ] RETENHE  UASHEAGBHETA
BHBBB0R KB RITEE  TRREMNEE
BRRIBAZHRFE(B1%)RE R/E TRHME
ZEIFI - ERBZRBAP /I - BR - BHE
HEEORRP/ D - MABRNRRER) KBS
R EFENEIMERER  RETIREETN
5ol o R AR BB A RAE MR B - &
HENEZEARAR - HILAIR - BENER
EMRETHEI - TEEEESNEBEN &
ARBEG  HEEEEFARNRBEL2H
B RMECENERRHERL 2T -
HKIRCREFHE T ZEMHEE - 5EEMA
TRHSKNBELEEHE - REME REFEE
MBEEERIEEASIT TEEERE -

Hbh—@EZHEE @ RHYPRPERBREIE
JREAT R B M R B Rt HI Cybersec Training
Hub © 7202248 A# L - iRt BHHK L2
Fgil - EOEBTEAGIERBELTR2EI
REtMERSIETEENBRLEHE - @
EZRRERAMNEIADRZARED - #HEE
SEBEIA35000HFEA - AT ASHE -

HTH c #2021 FEHR - REFHERRN
(B2 =B FTE M| T8 8 HTH 23400
[VASEE et r g
NEREFLEBNRKE
EERRBREMERTHES
2.

YRR MBE

CRIEBBHIK

HKIRCE [ ZE—# - #ar Sl RBERA
TEATRENELE  RHEBROBAK T2
meE  F)BERTRBNER - RELEME
RERBEFRTRIEGLENESR - HIEES
FRITHER - 2XKERMHKE -
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In addition to domain name services, another important mission
of HKIRC is to promote Hong Kong to become an international
innovative city of digital inclusion. Over the past years, HKIRC
spared no effort to promote web accessibility, hoping to
encourage more enterprises and organisations in the society
to optimise their websites and mobile applications and to add
accessible designs with the support of the Government and
the cooperation within the industry, so that more people in the
society can navigate the cyber world smoothly, which would
contribute to the development of Hong Kong into an inclusive
smart city. Encouraging results have been attained as the number
of participants in the “Web Accessibility Recognition Scheme”
increased by 19% compared with that of the previous year. This
reflects the fact that more and more enterprises emphasise
the importance of, and are willing to allocate resources to
digital inclusion, so that more people in need can have better
accessibility.

Looking forward to the future, Hong Kong will make concerted
efforts to advance towards the same goal and promote Hong
Kong’s economic recovery. As business and trade are on the
path to resuming normal activities, HKIRC, as a representative
of Hong Kong domain names, will also continue to engage
with overseas parties, to create exchange opportunities for the
business community and the sector in Hong Kong. We will also
take the initiative and play the active role in promoting cyber
security, enhancing the public awareness of cyber security, and
establishing a robust and safe cyber ecosystem.

CEO’s Statement

THRS®RE

EHEZRBIAI - HKIRCE —EEF RS
BARRBBABOBERAFNRT - BEZF—
ETESRNESEEBRERNTE  EEENE
BB MERNEAT Bt E LES
X BEETEENTFREREANELT
1E - IMAEBRRE - SHELES ARRGE
B EERAABNERNT - SENTEE
BREAZTE | 2RABREEES LTH19% -
PRAES N HE o EINENF R H MRS bR
REIBHEBNER  BERNERRER  BEZEH
FENALTAUESE RIFNERHEER -

REHR  HEFELE ETROHN  mE—
BEBIE#E U ESNCEERES -
HKIRCTTE R ERAEEOEH 2B - #HE
ERBFARENG D EIINDBRIR - HINEER
BEARAMERSIEIREE - AKTSHE—F
ItREB AT EERGHINACRSHER
ZEMEE  RABATRENBLZ 2R - &

UEE  REMBMLRE -

EBEBAEMEERERLA 2022 FE®RS
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Board of Directors and Committees

Board of Directors and Committees

Hong Kong Internet Registration Corporation Limited (“HKIRC")
is a not-for-profit, non-statutory, company limited by guarantee
designated by the Government of the HKSAR to undertake
the administration of Internet domain names under the “.hk”
country code top level domain and its equivalents. HKIRC
provides registration services through its accredited registrars for
domain names ending with “.com.hk”, “.A".&#E", “.net.hk” “. 4
. BB, “org.hk”, 4K BB, “.gov.hk”, “HF.FE", “.edu.
hk”, “#& . &H&", “idv.nk”, “EAA.EE", “hk” and “FHHE". Hong
Kong Domain Name Registration Company Limited (“HKDNR”"),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of HKIRC, is one of the accredited
registrars. The HKIRC Board of Directors consists of two Directors
elected by Members of the Demand Class, two Directors elected
by Members of the Supply Class, and four Directors appointed by
the HKSAR Government.

EERREES

EERREEE

BB ATMERBRAR(HKIRC) BB AR
AITBEBNIETMIELEF - EETE - BRAR
NE - BEREFBHWEIBERS A (B.hk KE
AR R B ) MITE R REC T1E - HKIRCEBE
A M RIS IR A .com.hk] ~ [ . AF).F
&1 T.net.hk]) [ #4848 .55~ [.org.hk] »
[ 448 F5] - [.gov.hk] [ .BF. &5
[.edu.hk] [ .#AF . &%  [.idv.hk] [ &
ANBB]Thkl R[.BE]AERNEE M
fR7 - HKIRCE T2 EMB AR — HEHA
FEMAR R B (HKDNR)ZH 1 — R 52 7] A9 £ 7
fR7%7 - HKIRCEEZBHN\BESAK - HAM
FESHEAEREL  MEmREREREER
PR - MEREEBFRITRERFERT

EBORAZMERERAT 2022 FEHSE
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Board of Directors and Committees

EERREEE

Chairman =&

Mr Simon,
CHAN Sai Ming, BBS, JP
PRABAF S A4 |, BBS, JP

Mr Simon Chan is the Vice Chairman and Executive Director
of Nanyang Commercial Bank Limited. Mr Chan has been in
the banking industry for 40 years, with solid experience in the
financial industry, the information technology industry and bank-
wide operations. Mr Chan is currently also a director of Cinda
Financial Holdings Company Limited, Nanyang Commercial
Bank (China) Limited, Nova Credit Limited, Hong Kong Interbank
Clearing Limited (HKICL), HKICL Services Limited and Hong
Kong Trade Finance Platform Company Limited.

Mr Chan actively participates in community service, including
serving as the Chairman of Hong Kong Cyberport Management
Company Limited, Chairman of the Banking & Finance Training
Board of the Vocational Training Council of Hong Kong, a
Member of the Finance Committee of the Hong Kong Housing
Authority, and a Member of the Banking Industry Training
Advisory Committee of the Education Bureau. He is also the past
President of ISACA China Hong Kong Chapter, and is at present
the Vice-chairman of Hong Kong Information Technology Joint
Council Limited, a member of the Financial & Treasury Services
Committee of Hong Kong General Chamber of Commerce and an
advisor of Our Hong Kong Foundation.

Mr Chan graduated from the Chinese University of Hong Kong
with a Bachelor’'s degree in Social Science and obtained a
Master’s degrees in Science and a Master’s degree in Commerce
in Accounting from the University of Ulster and the University of
New South Wales respectively. He is also a Certified Information
Systems Auditor and a Certified Internal Auditor.

(Appointed by the HKSAR Government
BUFZ1E)

PRATAEAE BB FRERTARAFRBESRR
HITES  RAELEERTEIF40F - HER
¥ BMMBRTERRITEFREEELR TR
FESRIERERAR  BFHERT(RE)
BRAF] - AEHEERAR - BARITRRE
HERRA - BARTAEEERBERAF R
EEESMETEARDAES -

RELBB2EY G R - HheRBEBRIEE
BEEARAFREZRER - BEBFIRBIRT
LEMEIRZEGETRE BEFEZESUB
NMEZREEZE HERRITETEEIENRE
BEZB -t REREMEARENHETEE
Bogmegk BEEMMBEEERER  BE
HEScREMERBZEERE  UREES
BELER -

RELEPFEENBETNAR  BHENER
TEA - K& R RBEEUTRE RS2 RORIMN T
BT RS2 MBE N BT R AL 2 - M5
RFEHE B RS ED S e AR AT AT o
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Deputy Chairman = /&

Board of Directors and Committees

EERREEE

Mr Gabriel, PANG Tsz Kit
TFEREA

Mr Gabriel Pang has over 28 years of experience in game
animation and comics industry. As the Founder of the leading
game development company, Firedog Studio, he is one of the
pioneers in game development and creative industry in Hong
Kong. Mr Pang is currently the Managing Director of Firedog
Creative Company Limited, CTO of V360 Limited, Chairman of
Hong Kong Digital Entertainment Association, the President of
Hong Kong Innovative Technology Development Association,
Vice Chairman and Honorary Secretary of Hong Kong Software
Industry Association, Vice Chairman of HKQF Information
& Communications Technology Industry Training Advisory
Committee, member of Hong Kong General Chamber of Small and
Medium Business — Youth Committee, and committee member
of Federation of Hong Kong Industries — Group 30 Innovation
and Creative Industries Council. He was also a past director of
Cyberport, past director of Hong Kong Education City Limited,
past committee member of HK Taiwan Cultural Cooperation
Committee, and past committee member of Commission on Youth.

(Supply Class RigiR it & 5 7l)

CTHANAREERAR (KNATE)EEHR
38 - RVIGOBMRARIEREME - NEAI#E
B BEREEEXRALBBAFLER - &
e HE PN 1999F Ak 3L 5 M ENE BIE AR AT
B E5HBLZRIENER  RIEME
MREH  BEBERERZ — - ZEENIER
SEERAMABEE  BNHARSEAE - B
FEEATABEREB e EFE  BBaIRER
BEHTER EAEHITEBSEETEREE
WE - BEREEBEMBAR R ETEEIE
ZEQREEFE BEAPIEESEFEESE
8 REBTEEEI0NMBTEBEAFTRAEZT
EHeR8 CEAENGKATBEBEERER
RABIRIES  BEUBEWERLGES - Ea
MILEEEEERE  MEFEBKEEEERE -

EBORAZMERERAT 2022 FEHSE
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Board of Directors and Committees

EERREEE

Deputy Chairman 2| &

Mr Leonard,
CHAN Tik Yuen
BeR 38R 7 A

Mr Leonard Chan is the founder and CEO of tag.digital Limited.
Leonard is a well-seasoned technologist and innovator, boasting
over 30 years of experience in research and development for
industrial automation systems, online advertising and digital
publishing solutions. He has acted as the Chairman of the Board
and Non-Executive Director for a number of Hong Kong listed
companies. In the last decade, Mr Chan was a pivotal figure in
propagating and popularising Jin Yong’s martial arts novels in
electronic versions around the world. Mr Chan has also been
deeply involved in the realm of network security and advocating
its importance to citizens and enterprises alike through his media
presence.

In the world of technology advancement, the technology patented
by Mr Chan revamps data tape for embroidery into a modifiable
digital format. During the past 30 years, he has directed
and collaborated in a plethora of cutting-edge technologies
and garnered multiple accolades, including the Hong Kong
Information and Communication Technology Awards for the
Best Business System Awards, two awards from APICTA, WSA:
m-Media & News, Hong Kong Awards for Industry: Machinery
and Equipment Design Award, Hong Kong Awards for Industries:
Technology Achievement Award, Hong Kong Awards for
Industries: Productivity and Quality Award, and other noteworthy
local and international recognitions.

At present, Mr Chan is the Chairman of Hong Kong Innovative
Technology Development Association, Deputy Director of Center
for Hong Kong, Macao, Taiwan and World Affairs Studies at
Communication University of China (CUC), Member of the
Qualifications Framework ICT ITAC, Member-Representative
of the Chinese Computer Federation, Vice Chairman of the
GBA 5G Industry Alliance, Member of the Vetting Committee
on IT Innovation Lab Programme in Schools, etc. Additionally,
he was previously Vice President of the Hong Kong Computer
Society and Vice Chairman of the Hong Kong Software Industry
Association. Mr Chan is an eminent Senior Member of Chinese
Computer Federation, Fellow of Hong Kong Institute of Directors,
Fellow of Hong Kong Computer Society, and Fellow of British
Computer Society.

(Demand Class & 7 5l)

BRiER AR EB TR BR QA AR AFH
THE - REER—NUEREEHRITERMA
FECLEAPLRS  EREEFETHR
R RT3 5 E A B30 F L -
AL B EBRIRSRESLLMAGNESEE
& ERITEESE - 2010820225 M - RELE
FEWERREBDSBER RN GHIERE FROYE
Koo MFRAEABGSEBERLENIIE BB
TRIK B RS BB 3 R W R N5 3 49
BEEHNEF -

FAIRIZERE AT - PR A AR RIS
BERETERKIFRENEHER B X
SOFEENLHERBEMNZHEREMBERLSE -
PIEEBEARBANEARSERERAKX
42 - APICTARIM{E 4218 - WSA: m-Media &
News « BB T 348 e NRERTTE - &%
TES: RIEKARE  BEIRER - £ENR
mE RESE B AN & BRI o

BRAEAXETHNL2BERELAREREGE
(HKITDA)EE » FREEXE(CUC)BRE
HARABFEHFFRALEEL - EFEEQF)EA
NMBABRETESIBRAZESEZE  HFH
FTERES(CCRZEEREK « NERSGE X
BEIEZFE ERITAHNEREFEITIEZES
KESE - N BIEEFEEMES(HKCS) 2
EREBBRHITEHE(HKSIABIEE - AL
NeEFEFTEREeaReE  BBEEFES
(HKIOD)BEF& 8 - BB EINEE (HKCS)BF
28 MEEEKSES(BCS)AFEE -

/
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Deputy Chairman 2| &

Board of Directors and Committees

EERREEE

Mr Raymond,
CHENG Siu Hong
E/NER S A

Mr Raymond Cheng is a seasoned IT professional and has
established a long career in the financial industry for more than
35 years. His last job was the Group General Manager and Chief
Operating Officer in the Asia Pacific region at HSBC, overseeing
Information Technology, Operations, Real Estate, Procurement
and Consulting Services. Currently, he is a Senior Advisor of
QBN Capital Management Ltd. Besides, he has established
strong connections with different IT professional bodies and
the IT community in Hong Kong. He is the Chairman of Chinese
University Engineering FinTech Applied Research Academy
Advisory Committee. He is a Council Member of the Hong Kong
Federation of Youth Group and Hong Kong Quality Assurance
Agency Governing Council. He also acts as a Director and
provide advisory services to a few FinTech startups. Raymond
is a Committee Member of the IT Steering Committee of Hospital
Authority and Baptist Hospital. He also sits in some technology
fund committee of the government. He is currently the Deputy
Chairman of Hong Kong Internet Registration Corporation Ltd and
a Committee Member of the Data Governance Steering Committee
of HKSTP. Raymond is a Distinguished Fellow of Hong Kong
Computer Society.

(Appointed by the HKSAR Government
BUFZ1E)

WNERERNEBREENTER - EEEX
BT THBISFHRBESE - B EEFEL
BELRTARNFEEAKERTAELER
£ BEZERBEEE: BN 2E 1
E - RBNHEARYE - BAT WEREEARER
BRABNSRER - b5 tpERFETRHN
ITEXBERMTEREL TEYNEBE - o5
ERATRESERSBREERMRTT OZAZE
ENIFE NEBEEETFHENEERERER
BEEHKE - BEEE - LSRBRYIEIAF
MESSEREZARYE - RBEABTBEHE
A EEERAFELIERBENRE QAR
EREEZBELE - BAELERKHIEBEMR
SBEeNEHEREE -
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Board of Directors and Committees

EERREEE

Member % &

Dr Wendy, LEE Woon Ming
FHRARAE LT

With over 20 years of extensive industry experience, Dr Wendy
Lee has actively participated in contributing to the development
of the innovation and technology industry. She also serves
as committee member of industry professional associations
and advisory committee, including as President of Hong Kong
Innovative Technology Development Association. Dr Lee holds
a Bachelor Degree in Electrical and Computer Engineering from
The University of British Columbia in Canada, Master Degree in
Business Administration from The University of Leicester in the
U.K., and Doctor of Business Administration Degree from The
University of South Australia in Australia.

(Demand Class & 7 5l)

FRABTRBRAFLRBRERABEB-T%
Fo—HEGSEEBRIF MM ERER - A%
RREZODREHE  TRENEXSERENRE
Bk BRABIAMERHEFTBHERS -
FERLEXNMEALBE T HBLEABNGEE
REMIIZR LM - MERISREIATHASE
ITHERBELTEM  ARERNAETHERR
TEfL -
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Member % &

Board of Directors and Committees

EERREEE

Mr Sean, LEE Fan Fung
FNELEAE

Mr Sean Lee is a telecommunications veteran with over 30 years
of experience in the industry. Mr Lee is currently the Director and
Chief Executive Officer of China Mobile Hong Kong Company
Limited, he is responsible for the Company’s strategic direction
and motivate the company as the pioneer in telecom industry. In
his previous role as Vice President of Technology and Services,
Mr Lee was responsible for the Company’s network, product
development and information technology. Mr Lee is also served
as the Founding Chairman of the GBA 5G Industry Alliance since
2019 to contribute effort on 5G industrial development. Mr Lee
graduated from the University of Manchester, United Kingdom,
with a Bachelor of Science Degree in Computer Engineering.
Mr Lee also holds a Master of Business Administration from the
University of Strathclyde in United Kingdom.

(Appointed by the HKSAR Government
BUFZ1E)

FRRELERBAXRANER—B >  REARE
BEI0FMNEERR - RATEBHRENE
ERTHER - EEEARNERTE - IF
BHRBABKRERNELERE -FREBENZ
REEBMEEREEEE  BEEERQRNHE
i ERMBEMERIRMNTIE- - I FEE
hRNERGEXRHBWAEGER - H2019%F
HANEBRANSGITERR - THELERERN
RESHMFARE BRESHIENSELES
i+ [P B 28 53 B B 45 1 T e AR R R AR B Y
MBATE T 8317 o
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Board of Directors and Committees

EERREEE

Member % &

Dr Winnie,
TANG Shuk Ming, MH, JP
BUMARIE L, MH, JP

B &)

Dr Winnie Tang, MH, JP is an Adjunct Professor in the Department
of Computer Science, Faculty of Engineering, Department of
Geography, Faculty of Social Sciences and Faculty of Architecture
at the University of Hong Kong (HKU). She is one of the local
born IT entrepreneurs from Hong Kong. In the 1990s, Dr Tang
founded Esri China (Hong Kong) Limited to develop and promote
Geographic Information System (GIS) software and solutions.
She is also the Founder and Honorary President of Smart City
Consortium. Over the years, she has been actively advocating
the use of technology and sharing her views regarding the ICT
industry, eHealth, environmental conservation, entrepreneurship
and smart city through her services in government and non-
government organisations in Hong Kong. In recognition of Dr
Tang’s work, she has been awarded the Honorary Fellow by
Lingnan University in 2020, the Distinguished Alumni by the
Faculty of Science, HKU in 2009, the Ten Outstanding Young
Persons in 2006, the Women of Influence — Young Achiever of the
Year Award by the American Chamber of Commerce in 2004 and
the Ten Outstanding Young Digi Persons Selection in 2001.

(Appointed by the HKSAR Government

EUMEAIE L MH - JP» BEELT AT REENE
MEERCER BB ASIRREMAEHE
BR HeRNBB8RWERARELEBREREY
BB LTR AT FEREIMESIFR(FHB) B
RAT - EFIMEERHEENIEEARG(GIS)E
HAMREREERRATR - BE L hEE SR
BAWARLBRER - [ TGISKE  HiELY
ICT/T% - EFRE - BERE  VAIDERE
ERTELTIRLES  UTEG2HES ARG R
REEH  BORESSRRRIMESEHEE -
BEITHERESRRATEZEELE  8F:
MR2020FEEF ASBMBELER T - HEKRE
2009 F IR BT A RR - 2006 F H B+ AEE
5F  ABEEEE2004F [ RAFEHM
15— FREHZE ] R2001 /BT AELH
BEFE o
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Member % &

Board of Directors and Committees

EERREEE

Mr Charles, LEE Chung Tak
TMELEE

Mr Charles Lee has over 30 years of experience in the data
center service and IT industries. He is the Founder of Newtech
Technology Company Limited and OneAsia Network Limited, and
currently serves as CEO who pioneers and leads the development
of the industry, including an expansion towards the Asia-Pacific
Region.

Mr Lee dedicates to serving the IT industry who founds the
Hong Kong Data Centre Association and is now the Chairman,
also Honorary Life Director of Hong Kong Electrical Contractors’
Association Ltd, Fellow Member of BCS, The Chartered Institute
for IT, Full Member of Hong Kong Computer Society, Advisory
Committee Member of The Hong Kong Internet eXchange,
Advisory Committee Member of Information & Communications
Technology (ICT) Services of Hong Kong Trade Development
Council and BEAM Plus Data Centre Taskforce Member of BEAM
Society Limited.

Mr Lee established the Legan Foundation in 2009 to make
contribution to the society. It aims to provide much-needed
help for those suffering from difficulties, especially elderlies and
youngsters. The Foundation also supports students from low-
income families to enhance digital competence through various
workshops and computers sponsorship.

(Supply Class, appointed on 13 May 2022
PR IR M E R BIR2022F5 13 HE )

FIEEEEBET ORBMEMBRITEES
ZTZENEELR - A AR R RTEIMIK
i REETREE - FREBEBI - AR
EDKE - HRITERER -

FREBNHDANRTEER  RELRE
OB RERTESBETOHELREE
R RS AAESEELREEARATAES
20E  AATHSERARLE  FAUHSY
EXEH  ESEGERATATLRNERR
ZR - ESESERRANRBAMKANER
B F A RRERRT G & RRT B L
REKE -

FRAERARBESHBEHEE TIETERD -
R2009FARIBIZRAES | N RIBHE
B OLHERERBLOFRUEDNEY - ZSTE
BEDTRTIEHREKRERE EHEERER
BRITEUSE N
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Board of Directors and Committees

EERREEE

Member % &

Mr Ben, LI Ming Pan
RN

Mr Ben Li graduated from City University of Hong Kong with
Bachelor of Science (Hon) Information Technology. He received
Master Degrees in Scientific Computing and Financial Engineering
from Hong Kong Baptist University and Hong Kong City University
respectively. Mr Li currently serves as Operations Director at
Equinix (HK) Limited, responsible to ensure stable and efficient
operation of all data centers in Hong Kong. Mr Li was a Director
Board member (Supply Class) of HKIRC between 2008 to 2014,
also being elected as the Secretary of the Hong Kong Internet
Service Providers Association from 2006 to 2009. He represented
the ISP industry to communicate technical and operational views
in various occasions, like Wi-Fi security guidelines formation,
Copyright Ordinance forum and Legislative Councilor advisory
board.

(Supply Class, retired on 13 May 2022
BR324 & R BIR 202265 A 13 HIRE)

TR EFEERB BT ARSI S EMBHE
BELEBN o RIENBEBZGRERBBHMA
E2H R BIRER S HIEEE L R K TRIEE
ELHEN o ZHRABBEquinix (HK) Limited
BIERE  BEEABHESRONEREE - F%
A EBR2008E 2014 F AT TS LB HEEME
BERARZEZPRBREHEERIRE - TR
2006 £ 2009 F HEE AEB LAt EN DS
WE - MR TRBERREBBEEREREE
BTk EECER  S2LHER FTPERETTAIN
FIE - AW RAEHENRNEES
Tk
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Existing Directors IREESE

Name

=L

Mr Simon CHAN Sai Ming, BBS, JP (Chairman)
PRAMAASCA - BBS © JP(EFE)

Board of Directors and Committees

EERREEE

Mr Gabriel PANG Tsz Kit (Deputy Chairman)
ZFERE (BIER)

Mr Leonard CHAN Tik Yuen (Deputy Chairman)
PR IR 5T 4 (BIEE)

Mr Raymond CHENG Siu Hong (Deputy Chairman)
/NS (BIEE)

Dr Wendy LEE Woon Ming
FIREAE L+

Mr Sean LEE Fan Fung
FIRE L&

Dr Winnie, TANG Shuk Ming, MH, JP
BOMBAE L - MH - JP

Mr Charles LEE Chung Tak
PIERE

Appointed on 13 May 2022
202245 B13AEAE

Resigned/Retired Directors EBR{IHEEES

Name

=L

Mr Ben LI Ming Pan

Date of Resignation/Retirement

BEREAS

Retired on 13 May 2022
202255 A13BRE

EREEHRAZMERERLF

2022 FEH%
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Consultative and Advisory Panel
BHEEE

Consultative and Advisory Panel
HHEES

10

Organisation

Towngas Telecommunications
Co. Ltd.
PRBEABRAA

Consumer Council
BBEZEE

Customs and Excise
Department, Govt of HKSAR
el

Hong Kong Information
Technology Industry Council
EREANBETE

Bank of China (Hong Kong)
Limited

ERT (F) BRAR
Alipay Financial Service (HK)
Limited

xE (B

Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants
EEREY

Speedy Group Corporation
Limited

BREEARAT

The Hong Kong Police Force

EAEHR

Hong Kong Productivity Council
BEEENRER

Representative

Mr Joseph LAl

Mr Ricky NG Chi Wah

Mr Henry WONG Che
Yin

Mr Peter SHUM

Dr Rocky CHENG

Ms Jennifer TAN
Yuen Chun

Mr Sylvian LEE Chi
Hung

Mr Johnny LUK
Chung Yin

Dr Frank LAW

Ir Alex CHAN

Chinese Name

RERRE

REELE

IRERE

SRERE

L=t

RmaLt

PEHEE

BERELE

BUREL

RIF X T2k

Business Title

General Manager
LIS

Head, Information Technology
EARRBEEE

Divisional Commander of
Intellectual Property Technology
Crime Investigation Division
iR RERAEA
KER

Chairman of FHKI

Group 25

MEZERER

Chief Information Officer

ERERE

Chief Executive

THes

Head of Information Technology
BRREEE

Director

=

Regional Commander of
Kowloon East

RNELEEER

General Manager, Digital
Transformation Division

gEELreLR
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Nominated by

Communications
Association of Hong Kong
(CAHK)

YR

Consumer Council
HEEZEE

Customs and Excise
Department, Govt of HKSAR
L

Federation of Hong Kong
Industries

EhIfpe

Hong Kong Computer
Society

e

HKGCC

Ehane

Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants
R PN

Hong Kong Internet Service
Providers Association

EELBRRBILERGE

Hong Kong Police Force,
Govt of HKSAR
BRLBR

Hong Kong Productivity
Council

Computer Emergency
Response Team
Coordination Centre
(HKCERT)
ERERRLEMHBAT L
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Organisation

Office of the Communications
Authority (OFCA)
BNEHEERNLE

Office of the Government Chief
Information Officer
BREMBREERLE
Professional Information
Security Association
BEEEENRT e

The Chinese University of Hong

Kong
BATXAR

The Hong Kong Council of
Social Service
EheREue

The Hong Kong General
Chamber of Small and Medium
Business Ltd.

FAT bR EHE

City University of Hong Kong
FARTAZ

Kone Elevator (HK) Ltd.
BNER(BHE)BRLA

The Law Society of Hong Kong
Ehae

Information Technology
Services, The University of
Hong Kong

FEAE

Representative

Mr Wilson LEE
Cheong-woon

Mr Tony WONG Chi
Kwong, JP

Mr Frankie WONG
Sze Ming

MrAlan SOK T

Mr Ricky FUNG

Mr Eric YEUNG
Chuen Sing, JP

Ir Sunny LEE WK,
BBS, JP

Ir Henry CHEUNG

Mr Amirali NASIR,
MH, JP

Mr Roger WONG Ho
Kit

Chinese Name
FEMEHE

ELHAE P

iy i

BERLE

BIFEE

BEEEL, P

ZFE T2, BBS,

JP

REETIED

"ARE

Consultative and Advisory Panel

Business Title

Principal Regulatory Affairs
Manager

BRRESHIEE

Deputy Government Chief
Information Officer

BB AR AL

ExCo Vice Chairperson
QxR

Computer Officer, Systems
Team, Infrastructure Services

BB RBREE

Deputy GM of HKCSS-ITRC
BREHERR O FBLE

Vice President

IR

Vice-President (Administration)

BIRE (T8

Managing Director, HK
ERHERE

Vice-President & Chairman of
InnoTech Committee
HFRHZEERIER
Associate Director

(IT Infrastructure)

Gl e

EREEHRAZMERERLF

HHERE

Nominated by

Office of the
Communications Authority
(OFCA)
BASHERRMLE

Office of the Government
Chief Information Officer

BRERHBREHRLE

Professional Information
Security Association
EAEREARL S
The Chinese University of
Hong Kong

EELYON

The Hong Kong Council of
Social Service

EEneRrHe

The Hong Kong General
Chamber of Small and
Medium Business Ltd.
FATEARLRE
The Hong Kong
Management Association
EREREEGE

The Institution of
Engineering and
Technology Hong Kong
IRRMBEERENS

The Law Society of Hong
Kong

Epi

The University of Hong

Kong
EEAE
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Corporate Governance
AN\ A g N/
lt§E%§/H

Corporate Governance

Designated by the Government of HKSAR to administer the “.hk”
domain, a public resource of the Hong Kong community, HKIRC
endeavours to implement good corporate governance within the
organisation to ensure that the administration is conducted in an
open, transparent and fair manner.

Memorandum of Understanding and Designation
Agreement

The Company signed a Memorandum of Understanding (MoU)
and a Designation Agreement (DA) with the Government of
HKSAR on 17 March 2010.

Consultative and Advisory Panel (CAP)

The CAP met on 14 June 2022 and 6 December 2022. Advisors
from different sectors have been invited to sit on the CAP and
advise HKIRC on policy issues and matters which help HKIRC
serve the local Internet community better.

Members of Audit Committee:

(Members listed in alphabetical order)

1 Mr Raymond CHENG Siu Hong (Chairman)

2. Mr Leonard CHAN Tik Yuen

3. Mr Charles LEE Chung Tak (appointed on 13 May 2022)
4 Mr Gabriel PANG Tsz Kit

5 Dr Winnie TANG Shuk Ming, MH, JP

Members of Executive Committee:

(Members listed in alphabetical order)

1 Mr Simon CHAN Sai Ming, BBS, JP (Chairman)
2. Mr Leonard CHAN Tik Yuen

3. Dr Wendy LEE Woon Ming

4 Mr Ben LI Ming Pan (retired on 13 May 2022)
5 Mr Gabriel PANG Tsz Kit

TEER
[ hk] BB RAHEHEREENLARER

EAERBBFEENT hk] tjz%ﬂ%%%
HKIRC BB EMEMEMRE T CEE A

AHRATARH BRRATHHRRER
[hk] % -
REHRS

HKIRC 2 & H & & %5 bl 1T B & B 72 20104 3
B17 BEZHRME S (MoU) MIEE L HE
(DA) -

BHZEEE(CAP)

CAP#202246 514 A K% 2022612 A6 H A
i BEMKBRETRRA - SHKIRCH
EMENEEERRREENEEL - ROAR

A B RRH B ERBREER -

BREZEEERE

(B B BT BED))

1 B/ NERAE (EFE)

2. BoR e IR 5 A

3. TINE AL (A20229F5 A13B &)
3 TR E

4 %ﬂﬁﬂﬁi MH + JP

BITEES
(B BIRE S HER)

1 FRABEA ST - BBS © JP(EE)
2. fR R SE A

3. FHRBAE
4
5

KB :

ZHSH S (FA202245 A13HEE)
TTHEE
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Corporate Governance

XER

Attendance of Board & Committee Meetings (From 1 January 2022 to 31 December 2022)

EERRZESERLERLHE (H2022F181HZE12A31H)

2022 Board
Meetings
Board of Directors 20224
BEERHKE EERER
Mr Simon CHAN Sai Ming, BBS, JP (Chairman) 100% (5/5)
BRAAAA L4, BBS, JP (£/F)
Mr Gabriel PANG Tsz Kit (Deputy Chairman) 100% (5/5)
ZFHEE (BIEF)
Mr Leonard CHAN Tik Yuen (Deputy Chairman) 100% (5/5)
BRER A (BIESF)
Mr Raymond CHENG Siu Hong (Deputy Chairman) 100% (5/5)
B/ NRS A (BIESE)
Dr Wendy, LEE Woon Ming 100% (5/5)
FIREAE L
Mr Sean LEE Fan Fung 100% (5/5)
FMELE
Dr Winnie TANG Shuk Ming, MH, JP 100% (5/5)
BOMARIE L, MH, JP
Mr Charles LEE Chung Tak 100% (3/3)
(Appointed on 13 May 2022)
TINERE
(R2022F5 A13HZ )
Mr Ben LI Ming Pan 100% (2/2)
(Retired on 13 May 2022)
(7202245 A 13 HIE )

2022 Audit
Committee
Meetings

2022
BEBZESEE HITZESER

N/A

100% (2/2)

100% (2/2)

100% (2/2)

N/A

N/A

100% (2/2)

100% (1/1)

N/A

EREEHRAZMERERLF

2022
Executive
Committee
Meetings
20224
100% (2/2)
100% (2/2)
100% (2/2)
N/A

100% (2/2)
N/A

N/A

N/A

100% (1/1)

2022 FEH%
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Risk Management Report

Bk EE RS

Effective risk management is a core component of HKIRC’s
corporate governance, and is crucial for the long-term growth of
the Corporation.

Based on scenario-based situations, HKIRC has set up a risk
strategy and streamlined its internal risk management framework.
The framework identifies, assesses, manages, and monitors
principal risks and uncertainties that may have an adverse impact
on the Corporation.

Having devised an appropriate risk strategy and calibrated its
risk tolerance, HKIRC performs regular reviews and updates to
minimise the impact of any potential risks. Risk management
has been integrated into the work process of all departments,
and employees share responsibility for monitoring and mitigating
potential risks.

If HKIRC identifies significant risks and uncertainties during
the risk management planning process, it will take appropriate
prevention and remedial measures to ensure these risks are
managed in a timely and effective manner.

With the new era of digital revolution, almost every business
and organisation is relying on computerised systems to manage
their daily business activities. As the crucial Internet registration
company for offering the stable service, we aim to address a
wide range of business risks and are prepared to mitigate threats
with protective measures. We regularly enhance the system
infrastructure and its components to ensure the reliability and
security of the HKIRC services.

Despite the unprecedented challenges posed by the COVID-19
pandemic, HKIRC has continued to enhance its service quality
and maintain a robust performance and good operational
efficiency by improving its system management and conducting
system upgrades. HKIRC has remained resilient and agile in
the face of market dynamics during the pandemic, and has also
striven to help different stakeholders mitigate risks and manage
any related impacts.

We strictly comply with the anti-epidemic directions and
practices issued by WHO and the Hong Kong SAR Government,
and have adopted “work-from-home” policies with guidance
for all our employees to reduce their risk of infection. We also
fully supported the “Early Vaccination for All” campaign, and
implemented the “vaccination in place of regular testing”
arrangement in all our premises. All visitors and service
contractors are subject to the “Vaccine Bubble” vaccination
requirement.

HKIRCRZ A » ABMAREZEIHKIRCEEE
A EBHEKI S R AR EHRNEEH
EE-

HKIRCIZ BB 1B L L AR eh L f B B AEZR
HIET T EE R AR AR - AP B RE
BRI R AR EEF ENE AR R & T HE
ESEE

AT R 2R B FORTE A AR ALK 12 - HKIRC
SEBIERE RERT - UAOKELRBOEE
RERERDBAESBPANRER - LEZRT
B ELE

BAESERRERBBES  BERETE
RE R R AHEERE - ARRIUEE AN L&
fRiEHE - UERZ SRR AV EA B AEE

oo
7o
%I °©

BEE R TR - REDEEMAMED KA
AERICEAGEREMMNBERELY - FRIRE
HEERBHEBMIMAT - BB BREE
RIERRERBAORE B M EXBRR -
B EMBRRGERRE R EAF - LR
HKIRCARISHI Al SEIEFI % 1 =

HERBEREEKZANITE - HKIRCERIF
HEDEEMERGERE - ARERNBER
%o DRFEEREREGRR - BERBRE
MAFEE - HKIRCHEBE MR B AL ) - LAF &
BIRAFNENTZE -

HAPIh B AR 18 S 1 R A AR AR R BB R R U
FTHPURIESIRTRI - BT R RRERR - BREX
TERRI(EER - REIHIETES - YEETH
BERATZ2MED  RITES | REXBE
AT ARERERAE BB 28 RE
EEFERRB A QAR - HUEERES
RBIHRTE
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Risk Management Report
s EE R E

The principal risks to be focused on are as follows: FE2REET

Principal Risks

Description
TERR bi g

Key Mitigations
TEEMIEN

Reputational
Risk
BEERR

IT System
Failure Risk
BB RETH
P Bz

The negative publicity
generated by false
allegations
ERIEZESHN A EHRE

The risk of catastrophic
system failure includes
hardware, software, and
network which impacts
business’ operations and
services.
TEEEE LIRS H A B
RSN EREEY - B
PSEER A

Prior to the implementation of the new strategies and
actions, meetings will be held with the Consultative &
Advisory Panel to consult on the new strategies and
actions.

B RELITHA - KEZAZTEGRITEH - YL
RERTHBANENER -

Maintain business relationships with “.hk” users and
industry participants through regular communication
to prevent misunderstandings and gather timely
feedback.
RBTHBRE] hk] ARPMTE2EERFTEBHR
VAR L BR AN B B U SR I 8B -

Maintain close communication and relationship with
the media and respond to inquiries in a timely manner.
BEERFEYBBMAR  WREDEESH -

Review the crisis communication process on a regular
basis.

EHRE EHBREIEER -

Issue clarification statement in response to false
allegations and seek legal advice from lawyer.
BREBBFBH  METERE  UHARMERZER -

Implement systems that are designed for resilience
and disaster recovery. Conduct regular system
inspections.

B EHEM R IRER NRANERS - EHETRS
W -

The Domain Name System (DNS) service is hosted
on a platform consisting of a number of servers in
different countries/regions. The service is supported
by stable and mature technologies, such as anycast,
to maintain a level of availability and resilience.

WY ETHRFE(ONS) M AMRBTFABURTRBER &
B IRIGERAEX o ZPRIE TR AIRTE M AR KA - PlanfE
i (anycast) BT A 3 — B /K FA A B R EDIE -

Adopt active-active solutions to implement registration
services at multiple sites to avoid single point of
failure.

EZ AR RAE R RARETIMRT - AREEER
HIE -

EBORAZMERERAT 2022 FEHSE
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Risk Management Report

BB EE RS

Principal Risks

FERERE

Information
Security Risk
B Z 2R R

Occupational
Health and
Safety Risks
BERREZ R
Bt

Description

i

The risk of cyberattacks
and hacking on our
systems and data
FRMBIRE X BRI
EEARNER

The risk of data breach
caused by negligent
employee or contractor
& & skF B R i 72 1 48 B
MEIE S RER

The risk of not being

able to operate due

to infectious disease
outbreaks or due

to adverse weather
conditions or traffic
operations

EE LRk B L RAMR
SRR EIE T R I A S E
B = fax

Key Mitigations
TEEMIEN

Develop Information Security Management System
(ISMS) with infosec policy and procedures to enhance
the protection of confidentiality, availability, and
integrity of systems and data, and IT department
have already acquired the international standard
certification for the ISMS.
BYBAHEAREERREFHNERRLEERF(ISMS)
LARFE R4t R BUR M M -~ AT AR TR - RIRFITED
FITRE BLUL E IR R BB RARERE -

Implement security measures based on a defense-in-
depth strategy. Stay alert to cyber threats, regularly
check for vulnerabilities and follow up with subsequent
remediation efforts. Work with service providers that
mitigate distributed denial of service (DDoS) attacks to
handle heavy traffic.
BERNRENRRBEBORELER - KAEHBEREE -
EHREIRR R IRE &R Em TIE - B D A EE
AR5 (DDoS) B RS HEEEEE - RIEEARERE -
Regularly conduct various safety training for
employees.

RETITFHETERE LRI -

Conduct annual security audits and internal audits
regularly by external professional consultants to
identify potential vulnerability and improvement areas.
ZHINRE R E T FER 2 EA RABELT - A
BREERARSEZEM -

Comply with the best practices promulgated by the
WHO and the Hong Kong Government.

B THHEBRLEBBNRMOREERE

Review health and safety guidelines regularly.
FHRECRERRZ S -

Conduct health and safety awareness training and
annual drills for employees.
HETHRBRREZE2EHEE)  WETFERE -
Closely monitor the situation and provide immediate
assistance or guidance to employees as necessary.
YIS - WV ER AN 8 TREGEISES -
Establish and adopt flexible work arrangement
practices, such as Working from Home policy.

B LFRAEEN TIELHER  tERPABE -
Establish and implement contingency plans or
arrangements (if necessary).

B RWITRE BIRLH (MBALR) -
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“.hk” Registration
[.hk] =

HKIRC’s key mandate is to provide top-quality “.hk” domain

registration services for the Internet community.

Types of “.hk” and “.&#” Domain Names

The types of domain names available for registration are the same
as in the previous year. We have two types of “.hk” and “.&&"

domain Names: specific and generic.

The table below illustrates the types and numbers of “.hk” and
“. &% domain names registered as of 31 December 2022,

[.hk]ZEHAE A

Specific “.hk”

O “ com.hk” - 113,225
“ edu.hk” . 2,624
O ".gov.hk” . 736
() “idv.hk’ 976
O“.net.hk" - 189
O "org.hk” - 5,117
Generic “.hk” | “.&8”
BHEE 99,558

[.hk] R [.&#]

or

o
o’
o
o’

T

EBEHAEMERAFRAR(HKIRC)WEE(E
e AEBMATRREELEM [ hk] AR

7 o

[.hklR[.&#8 =S BER

AT RET A0 204 FE AR AR b R R LR SR AT AR
£ ARREl.hk] X[ . BRI H2ED RER

Ha R BREARARE

TEREIhkIR[ . BB SBTRENER - LA
REZE2022F12 A31 HIEWMEE -

BB ERAES
Specific “.&&”
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nal . BwE] 27,839

HE . BE] 1,463

AT . BA] 351

EA . &5 .62

Bix . BE 115

e BE 2,616
rx w5 B 21 368



“.hk” Registration

[.hk] =X

Total Registrations =T 48 8

The total number of “.hk” domain name registrations was 276,239 [ .hk |21 20226 E /M E25276,239 -
in 2022 - a slight decrease from the previous year. The overall BEFEHTEE - AMKEHARZRE  HE=*
“.hk” domain number has maintained a growth momentum across MEHEBE+TFEFRN—BERERIFIEEE S -
the last ten years.

— 373,934
400,000 360,301

350,000 [ ()

288,947 g 282,794

300,000 [ 272,833 274,812 280,30 277,068 276,239
254,544

242173 . .
250,000 | . . . . ‘ .
®
200,000
150,000
100,000

50,000 |

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

Domain Renewal in 2022 (by Renewal Year Term) 2022 F i BEH (REBFEH)

O t-year 81.19%
145

() 2-year 5.42%
24
3-year 6.34%

O3y

() 5-year 5.64%
5%

o 10-year 1.41%
104

EREMATMERERQT 2022 FEHRS
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[.hk] =X

2022 Domain Holder Type (by Percentage) 2022F HERFEEER (RESE)

Organisational Individual

s f8A

2022 Registrar Market Share 2022 EMBETHEER

Top 3
Registrars

Top 5 Top 10
Registrars Registrars

B3fEMmE B5 MBS E10{ M
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DNSSEC Validation % among APAC Regions

Since the HKIRC officially announced the signing of DNSSEC
for “hk” and “.&%" domain names in May 2017, Hong Kong
has been maintaining as one of the leading DNSSEC-deployed
regions in APAC with a DNSSEC validation rate of 35.21% (as
of early February 2023), contributing to a secure, stable and
interoperable environment for both local and global Internet
communities.

Source: APNIC labs statistics

“.hk” Registration

[.hk] =

DA EDNSSECH: & R L&

B201745 AHKIRCEREM AEBIEEE
[.hk] & [.E#] 3BDNSSECIAR @ HEK
DNSSECEFXR —HEN K& NRIFATIAIF ©
HZE2023F2 A LF) - HEHIDNSSECER & X E
35.21% * A7 K BIPR B B A AR 4 — (@IS
F - BRRMBEIRE -

BRR : EARKERTLOERESBUR

o Hong Kong 35.21%
BB
Singapore 57.85%
bk

O Japan 15.98%
A7
South Korea 3.66%
[EE:

o China 0.04%
R

~_ ’

Registrar Accreditation Programme

Registrar Accreditation Programme was launched in 2011, with
an aim to encourage fair competition, enabling more choices to
customers and ultimately increase the number of “.hk” registration
uptake. Customers are free to choose their preferred registrar who
is able to offer one-stop Internet services to meet their specific
needs. In 2022, there were a total of 36 registrars, including 12
from local Hong Kong market, 6 from Asia, and 18 from overseas.

o AR 75 7 52 AT A &

EMREREBATER 2011 EHL - §HESH
BATHES  ARFPRMHEZEE  HE{EE
[ hk]EEZFMERA BEFURSEEE - A
HIEEAS BN MRS TR — R o
20224 - HKIRCHR A M)+ il AR %5 75 £ B 36
R EBER1I2RARMFMREN  6XKEAR
M AR EEIN ©

EBORAZMERERAT 2022 FEHSE
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“.hk” Registration

[.hk| =

Registrar Awards

2022 Best Registrar Performance Award

Gold SPEEDY GROUP CORP. LIMITED
Silver CSC Corporate Domains, Inc.
Bronze

Registrars in Hong Kong Zi& MR %E

BRANDFOCUS Communil ink ﬁ dataplugs
; o
HKT““ hosting ;< @mm
speed I
fytEn muns
’ UDerman
Registrars outside Hong Kong & &SN ARIS
J'r_lm 123 domain.e ®QPI

ascio ™= C/)csc
Ecbmaiis euroons  “gransy
IPFTWINS  MARCARAwn 3 MarkMonitor
T
webnic

accelerate your business
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Highlights of the Year
FEEZR

“hk” Community

HKIRC strives to serve the Internet community and foster an
inclusive digital community by promoting the use of “.hk” domain
names across different sectors. Over the last year, HKIRC
maintained a high level of accuracy and stability in the service
operations of “.hk” and “.&%" domain names. This is an example
of our commitment to providing a secure and reliable network
environment that enables domain holders to expand their online
business.

Bolstering the IT Infrastructure

HKIRC puts the provision of high-quality and professional
services to all “.hk” and “.&#&” domain holders at the forefront.
Its priorities include strengthening its IT infrastructure, and
performing regular upgrades to keep all systems up to date
and to maximise system performance. In the past year, HKIRC
upgraded the security gateway system and the corporate network
access control system to improve the network security of its
offices. Meanwhile, HKIRC moved into a new data centre to
maintain optimal state of operation, as well as the best service
level in all aspects through disseminating security tips, news
and alerts to all our staff and conducting mandatory security
awareness training (including mock phishing email tests) on a
regular basis.

[.hk |8

HKIRCE ) IR 7% B Bt 484 BF - B TR R B
A hk] 2RSS - (REBBABEFOKE -
EF - HKIRCHER T [.hk] B [.&E | 55 k5%
M EEERNIRGERISE  FERHZ2AE
MBRRE  BERERBEAZNHERBLNE
% o

EREMNMEER

HKIRCHREZMEmERMA [ .hk] k[ &
FEFBEA  RESEEMEEKERY - A
—ETE IR EMBHRERE - BRBRRBRR
REMEETRE - BE—F HMARTZ
RARANDEBRD AT ZFARARRA
EHMRERLKT A HKIRCBEF O
BROMRIFREETRE  BRFELRELHE
B RAFER - FHETEERLTER (B1E
BRRESNAEBAR) EREINZTEN &
SRAE A B MRS S FE R RIS K o
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The key mandate of HKIRC is to provide top-quality “.hk” domain
registration services for the Internet community. Therefore,
HKIRC has been maintaining good business relationships with
the accredited registrars. In 2022, HKIRC organised a series
of joint webinars with registrars to promote the importance of
domain security. We actively encouraged registrars to promote
“hk” and “.&#&” domain names at the local level to encourage
enterprises create favourable conditions for sustainable business
development. We also organised events for companies to
accelerate commercialisation and brand influence, boost user
confidence and increase business momentum. At the international
level, HKIRC maintained cooperation with registrars in Europe
and Southeast Asia to further expand the awareness and
presence of “.hk” in different markets worldwide. Looking forward,
HKIRC will direct its business development towards strengthening
cooperation with registrars and maximising synergistic effects to
scale up business impact. With the business network established
in the past, HKIRC will gain even more exposure with potential
registrars around the world and hence further expand its business
coverage.

The year 2022 represents a critical year of digital transformation
of many SMEs when they seek for new opportunities under a
brand-new business model and operation targets. In this regard,
HKIRC invited experts from Hong Kong Police Force, Centaline
Data Technology Limited, UDomain Web Hosting, Check Point,
CyberBay and PwC, to attend the 14th Digital Marketplace
Seminar — “Invisible Threats in Network Security of SMEs”, which
was well received, with SMEs obtaining reminders and strategies
regarding invisible network threats.

In September 2022, HKIRC published the survey results on the
“Security Awareness of Emerging Cyber Risks”. Over 800 entities
of different scales were interviewed in the form of questionnaire
on their awareness of new network threats, and the most
overlooked threats for businesses were identified. A majority of
the respondents are local SMEs in retail, manufacturing, import
& export, accommodation and catering, training and education,
finance service, professional institutions, information technology
and non-governmental organisations and other sectors.

Cyber security of businesses was widely concerned and
discussed in the past years. With the ever-changing advancement
of digital transformation, cyber security incidents are becoming
more frequent. With little knowledge in new cybersecurity threats,
respondents are prone to traps and cyberattacks. HKIRC wishes
to raise businesses’ cybersecurity awareness as early as possible
through this survey to face against cyber risks.

Highlights of the Year
FEEZR

HKIRCH E EEK M EMEL BFRHEEDDN
[hk]EBMARS « dtt - HKIRCEER R
EEEMRERE - —ERFRIFEBBE - 2022
F o HKIRCEHEMRBERINEHR T ZHB L
Mg EEERLE2NEEN - RMBER
SEEMREEEASTSEESTHERE hk]
L[ FEINEE  REETHENFEER - 0
B ERB AR mRWE - EEEH A
Gt AP ELLFBEBKE - BERTS
JTE - HKIRC #4848 B2 BN K 3R 7 25 /0 =L 1 AR 7%
BRI AME - E— R .hk] EER TR
S ENMBEMEEE - REARK - HKIRCE
HERERORR - ERINREEMREEAE - A
BEGRME  BREBEBRIMEBRBE K
EEMEEEENNTMRGE - E—FHEREE
s o

2022F BRADH/NBEEHIEHE A HERE—
FEBRGTNCERR  EEFRNALES
HETHEE - 5 R &I - HKIRCES +U/E [
WSS AR NEERL2 B &
FRERE]ATE  BEEBEBE PR
HEREARAT - BEEH - Check Point »
CyberBay RPWCEZMITEERHZE * I2RH
NI EE RIS - BE/ NI AEFE
EZMEL RS - EZ I -

202249 F » HKIRC#R 7 [ ¥ WA AX B fa2 9
ZEEHIORAERR - ARBERGR T A8
HBBBOOR TRRIEM B E - R AREE
HMRBIZE - Wi TR RE R SDEMRR
oo R RKB AR/ NBERZE - K
BTE  REMERD  EBEMER  FJIFH
B SRR BEME  ERMEMIERFE
BESITEE -

BEBFARRNTRALERKL2ME - Mk
EZYHBBUNTR—BTE  PBEL2EHHLH
BIRE  XSEHENFVEENRBEE &
GREREMERNE - HKIRCH BREFE R XA
L BOEREALPRERAN  BREZEER
TREAEEAR -

HEOBEATMERAERAA 2022 FEHRE
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HKIRC shoulders the responsibility of promoting “.hk” domain
names by focusing on the three core values, which not only
enables “.hk” users to have a better understanding of the
benefits “.hk” domain names bring and their advantages on the
Internet, but also demonstrates to potential or other domain users
the unique influence of “.hk” in Hong Kong's e-commerce, to
encourage more businesses to adopt “.hk” domain names.

The three core values of HKIRC are “ldentity of HK”, “Ranking
high in the search engine” and “Confidence & Cyber Safety”,
which deepen its own brand value of “.hk” from the three aspects
of brand image building, digital business edge and customer
confidence. The past year was HKIRC’s 20th anniversary, HKIRC
has conducted interviews with ten “.hk” users in such fields as
infrastructure, start-up and large-scale enterprises, to share what
role can different core values play in using “.hk” domain names.

When it comes to the brand image connected with our ‘HKIRC’
name, we link “I” with “Identity of Hong Kong”. A “.hk” domain
name not only carries a sense of being “deeply rooted in Hong
Kong”, but also demonstrates a company’s long-term commitment
to doing business here. It is an ideal “local symbol” of having a
strong focus on the local market, and also represents the “made
in Hong Kong” identity.

Another core value of “.hk” domain names is encapsulated by
the letter “R” in our name, which stands for “Ranking high in the
search engine”. Through search engine optimisation, enterprises
can improve the keyword ranking of their websites and become
more searchable in the digital world. In addition to attracting more
visitors to their website, this also maximises the click-through rate
and the exposure rate, bringing in more potential customers and
helping enterprises grow their business in the long run.

Adopting “.hk” domain names also ensures both “C”onfidence
and “C’yber Security, giving consumers peace of mind when
they are viewing web pages and making online transactions.
Enterprises applying for “.hk” domain names are required to verify
their identity by submitting business certification documents. This
helps ensure their website authenticity. According to a previous
survey conducted by HKIRC, credibility is a determining factor
for local consumers when choosing an online shop, a fact that
explains why “.com.hk” and “.hk” are among the most popular
domain names for consumers.

HKIRCEB#ET hk] HEMNEML - L= K&
BEEAEHMIINAREE  TNMEEINKIAFPE
THET . hk] BTSSR TE - B E BN -
MEZ  RRbtRETKEtEEERERT
[ Wk EBBNETHERMEEIE —E K
FEN BEEZCEFERI K] -

HKIRCH = K OEES B A - [EBHE]
[B{SEOHEE | R[5 0MRFE ] - DRI RMEF
SRY - B EEERNERPEL=ETRAA
EE REIhk] BEREEE - BE—FE
EHKIRCA I =+ EAF - HKIRCEH M 7 +1@E
BIEEE - 78 AECESRATREED
[.hk] AP - DZEHEFEA .hk] HEZ TR MZ
DMEENAERENS A E ERER T -

HREERARE - 1] EFRKRIdentity of Hong
Kong o [ hk] MERERERES] - TEBLE
EARMWTIS L BERAEE © [ .hk] 24 H M
[ ) B AEIZRE o

[.hkl S —%Z0EERZIR]anking high in
search engine  RRERESSIZEAAEX
T oBEMIRABUPERERTOBEE o [ .hk]
NARIEE TG ERE « HERMEBE X - 8B
ERBEEBENEE  URSRERESIRE -

MICIBIRERAT hk BRI ERTEL ]
(Confidence) & [ #3#5% & ] (Cyber Security) -
EAHBEERYEINREBLENER  BE
WPEIETHERS A UBARL L - BER
Alhk]HE - BAERXEEFANY - UxE
BEAGD  HWEBRTEABNEETER - BE
BAEHKIRCHE - SEMNAEREEEAEE
EEEBEENEEZEEE - MLl .com.hk] &
[.hk | RRIEDEHE -
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HKIRC’s 20th Anniversary

The year 2022 marks HKIRC’s 20th Anniversary since its official
operation in 2002. We held the 20th Anniversary Dinner to
celebrate the meaningful day. Government officers, members
of the Legislative Council and former chairmen and directors,
members of the Consultative and Advisory Panel of HKIRC and
affiliated institutions were sincerely invited to witness HKIRC’s
efforts in building Hong Kong as an inclusive, secure and
innovative in international e-commerce centre in the past two
decades, encouraging the public to deepen their understanding
of the Internet and improving cybersecurity and web accessibility
awareness through various events. HKIRC also appreciated
all guests for their years of support by taking this opportunity.
The officiating guests, Professor Sun Dong, Secretary for the
Innovation, Technology and Industry Bureau, and Chairman of
HKIRC, Mr Simon, CHAN Sai Ming, BBS, JP were also invited to
officiate and deliver speeches at the banquet, boosting a lively
atmosphere.

In particular, HKIRC prepared the 20th Anniversary
Commemorative Book to commemorate its 20th anniversary and
record its highlights in the past two decades. We also invited “.hk”
users to share their “.hk” stories, hoping to establish connections
with more Internet users in Hong Kong and overseas through “.hk”
domain names and to share more wonderful stories in the future.

Public Mission

The year 2022 represents a critical year for digital transformation
of the Hong Kong economy. With the recession of the impact of
the COVID-19 outbreak in the second half of 2022, businesses
were setting foot in the e-commerce market to take the first-mover
edges at the revival of industries. HKIRC is committed to building
and maintaining an inclusive and secure barrier-free Internet
ecosystem. We stepped up efforts to provide appropriate support
to different Internet users to improve the level of cybersecurity,
while designing accessibility web pages for the benefit of people
with disabilities. The mission of HKIRC is to drive the popularity
and application of the Internet. We rolled out various initiatives on
cybersecurity and digital inclusion to fulfil these public missions.

Highlights of the Year
FEEZR

HKIRC 20 E &3%F

HKIRC B 2002 4F #1IEF IR AGEIE + 220224 [l
FEA0EF - REMEEEZEEIEAHBET
HKIRCEITT20 FHELASKRE - BEK
FEEB - xg@8 HKIRCHETZENRE
= - FHZEBEGHEMREHELRE Y —RE
FEHKIRCEBE20F B N HEB BB K AR L
B TR AFERETEERLNIE B
BARVEBEE) A RIRE BB ARSI
PELTrMEEREENES  THAEALES
MARZFEROZIFEH - FRTESEERE
BRI E R ITERRRARBEMHKIRCEE
PRANBASCAE » BBS » JPEKEL © BB IERAF o

BTRS20FFHE - HKIRCTEEERET (=
TAFLSBHDEEBETHNBEEZ - I
FR—FRI.hk] AR ZBRMMARMN .hk]
ME FEEAEREMBAI k] HEZEEES
EBNEREINEBBAL  RHBEZBYNE
VEHNEE o

DNREW

2022 F REBGEMARBHLNEE—F
EETEOYERTLFESRRA LIRS
BEERZHEENABAEDS - HKIRCHE
HRBRNMERD  BERRARGBSGE
f - EBE TSN ATRNEKEERERE
BEHTIE - RENARSEHRTKT - A
HEREASHBEEALHFRT - M7 EER
REHBERE - HKIRCHRE 2R N D EH
BOEREA  BE—FREEERER 2NN
BABAAFARB T SEEE - AEBTARE

P
g °

EBEBAEMEERERLA 2022 FE®RS
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The Hong Kong business community was accelerating
its digitalisation process in the past year ushering in new
opportunities in mobile payment and logistics support, which
also facing operational challenges. Cybersecurity is becoming
unprecedently important in the process of converting the
conventional operating model to online for systematic supervision.
Insufficient countermeasures and readiness in light of malicious
cyberattacks will affect the operation and goodwill of a business,
especially for SMEs without sufficient resources for training and
regular system updates.

Now that HKIRC shoulders the mission of promoting cyber
application, we should optimise the level of cybersecurity and
provide relevant education with our experience and expertise to
improve the cybersecurity awareness of all sectors and protect
the interests of all “.hk” users and the local Internet community,
enhance “.hk” image and contribute to building Hong Kong as an
Internet inclusive, secure, innovative and international metropolis.

The best way to protect the website is staying on guard to
perform regular scans and checks on the system and find out
actively system vulnerabilities to respond to potential risks. Over
the past years, free website security scanning service has been
offered to “.hk” users. Detailed website security scan report and
consultation would also be provided to make users understand
the risks their websites may be exposed to and address potential
issues promptly. Urgent demand for the free website security
scanning service has driven the continuous growth of users. In
2022, websites of more than 2,300 institutions and businesses
applying for such service were scanned with continuous status
updates to keep informed. HKIRC will continue to actively provide
security advice on information systems and encourage customers
to join the service. With more organisations participate in the
website scanning service, HKIRC will be able to analyse data and
share its experience with SMEs to reduce common mistakes in
cyber security.

RECEEEFSRETEIREL - 7000
BHRK  TEEHIRBADN  WREES
TR EERS - EZBTFEERNEREER
BN LETRAREE - BELE2EE
FIRENEER - KEHERMK ELNBERERR - &
RRZ BT OE - BFELENE
EMEE - HRRREHERETHIMERE
ARG TN - FELHRE -

HKIRCEI B AR ERKEAMEm - BEMA
RBMEZMBRRCBRREEOKFLRH
HENHE  REEAEPERE2NRE R
BEPFA [ .nk] B MA M B R B R - 58
LTk ER - RESHTERABEEHRR &
2 BIFOBEREHH DN -

REFUFETHERKZREBRE - Z1EEHRF
HMRE RS - EEH L R332 R BN
Bk - EBEBMEM - HKIRC—EAM [ .hk] B
PRESBEULZ2FHRY - USRHEFHE
MR FERE REEEH  BREAPERE
A REEE AR REMREERE - 2B
M EREREOERREY  BRPEFELR
2022 - HKIRCHt AiB 82,300 1E R 55 A B ik
BN ENEWETL 2R - EEER
HARREF - FAFPERAEKMN - HKIRCHE
EEEBREEMZSNRTESR  SBEPN
ARZEFHERE - BEFLZRELEGRERE
HKIRCARZR AT = HE B - MBEIE S TR
DR NIRRT EEILIER -
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In the first half of 2022, HKIRC organised a series of webinars
which aimed at nurturing a strong cyber security culture. These
are an ongoing initiative to educate and equip “.hk” members and
users with knowledge about and insights into key cybersecurity
issues, as well as best practices for safeguarding businesses
from cyberattacks. With the relaxation of epidemic prevention
and control in the second half, seminars were re-organised to
communicate face-to-face with different “.hk” users. The webinars
were conducted online once a month. They covered a wide range
of topics related to domain name security, security of remote
office, NFT risks, etc. Industry experts and business partners,
such as Hong Kong Police Force, the Office of the Privacy
Commissioner for Personal Data, AnyDesk Software, Check
Point, Cloudian, CSC, Cyberbit, Fortinet, HDcourse, HKGCC,
ReaQta, SonicWall, Varonis, were invited to share their valuable
experience on these topics.

HKIRC, jointly with HSBC “Business Go”, held four consecutive
webinars themed “Welcoming the Voucher Opportunity and
Creating a Successful E-Commerce Business during the
Pandemic” to publicise the cybersecurity precautions for
operating online business to prevent SMEs from falling into fraud.

In order to further enhance the business community’s capacity to
respond to cybercrises and reduce the risk of security loopholes
caused by human errors, HKIRC launched a new “Cybersec
Training Hub” in August last year, which provides employees
with basic training to learn cybersecurity risks they may be
exposed to in daily work and improve awareness of prevention
and in turn apply the same in their work. Since its launch, the
platform has been visited by up to 35,000 employees, reflecting
that the demand of businesses for relevant training is as great
as expected. In this regard, HKIRC also decided to enhance the
width and depth of the platform and will provide tailored industry
cyber risk scenario training courses in 6 different industries or
positions, to broaden the audience base and to deepen the
content scope, aiming to minimise cybersecurity risks with the
most appropriate resources for the benefit of employees.

Highlights of the Year
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HKIRCA TEUBHRLZE2EZ XL BRER
B AR A AR R B EIRIEF R - TR BRI
EHFEEES  UEE[ k] APNEREEE
B DZEELG - E2022F FHEF - TR
TE MAGNESRELRT  ETHFREE
DEBEME  MHARERBEEE#XE - BS
B .hk ] EE M - HKIRCE AT — R4
g EMEREZ  BEEELE - E
EHTHLEE  NFTRKRS - 2HEEERRER
BEBE MAERLBHEERZE - AnyDesk
Software » Check Point » Cloudian *+ CSC »
Cyberbit » Fortinet ~ HDcourse * HKGCC
ReaQta - SonicWall ~ VaronisZ1T¥(EZR LA
e HERNZEEKR

UESN » HKIRCTFELEZHESE - UISHHEE
HFHB[E]EELE R | AR BT —&EN
SHREKEAE  m—BRNEEELEEEN
P2 TEBIE - URRERR -

BTE-DREOEBEBREENED UK
BOANBREmMEKET 2R RANRRE - HKIRC
REFSAKLE2FNIBELE2EITHEIF
B REERNIRECENETL - ARTN
FRABTFEEZAFIIETFEBE LNEBEE
B HETHREECHINESHESH  #
MEBETIES - BHHUKRES  EHBE
35,0000 B T A + REE S EEEBIEII
BRMIEER —KK - R kit - HKIRCTRWA
EMAFENEEMEFE  TEREZHMETR
TTEESBAI 2 - IREE FRIEMITENBRER
BIEEIIRE  BEAXB 28R EAR - B2
BENMBIAELE A THEUEANERNUE
TR BT 2R
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As part of its commitment to safeguard the cybersecurity of
the Internet community and to promote Hong Kong as a smart
and safe city, HKIRC has been cooperating with the Office of
the Government Chief Information Officer (*“OGCIO”) since 1
September 2020 in running a Partnership Programme called
Cybersec Infohub.

After operating the programme for over two years for “.hk”
users, HKIRC held an anniversary event titled “Cybersec Infohub
Annual Professional Workshop 2022: Rethink Your Cyber Security
Strategy” on 12 October 2022. At the event, a series of “Awards
for Top Contributors 2021/22 — Organisation” were presented to
organisations that had actively shared on the platform. They were
(in alphabetical order):

Check Point Software Technologies Limited

Fortinet International, Inc

In Concept Technology Limited

Intertek Testing Services Hong Kong Limited
Lapcom Limited

Palo Alto Networks

Sangfor Technologies (Hong Kong) Limited
Trend Micro Limited

- 200N O~ BND S

— O

In 2022, more than 560 new members joined the platform,
which now includes over 1,420 corporate members and more
than 2,460 representatives in total, from a range of sectors that
include Information Technology, Banking, Finance and Insurance,
Education, and more.

A total of 10 member events were held at Cybersec Infohub, to
share the latest cyber security trends and knowledge including
webinars, technical workshops and sector-specific events,
attracting over 800 participants to share the latest cyber security
trends and knowledge.

HKIRC is committed to providing continuous enhancements that
address members’ needs for cybersecurity information-sharing.
In 2022, we added indicators of compromise (IOC) of different
communities to the machine-to-machine sharing API interface for
sharing threat intelligence, including Fortinet, Trend Micro and
HKCERT, to broaden the sharing level from open resources to
commercial resources. In addition, Cybersec Infohub has also
become the first platform with local 10C.

HKIRCE T REAREBHN BB MR - HEAX
BRASEMT - IBRRENLTE2EE  FitE
BFEMRIBREERNETAE  EH[RELE
BALZFEMHETE ] 202059 A1HERLE
i W B)ATE -

HKIRCEEZ BN AR [ hk ] P E R iBM
F o E2022F10A12HE#H T [Cybersec
Infohub B F B2 T {E3h2022 : EFHEE R

BTN - & LB T2021-2022FEF [ &
HEERMEREE] HTEES ZEMNSRIELE

(AT A MEIERFHER)

Data World Computer & Communication Limited

Hong Kong Computer Emergency Response Team Coordination Centre
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited

20224 » Cybersec Infohub¥ & £ 838560
BEFKENMA - KERBTRITE  BREEME
B R1T - SRRIRE - HERS - BRERBIT
BiB1,420K - EEABRFKBB2,460A ©

Cybersec Infohub ¥ & HEHF101EE E/ES) -
BEM LTS - BRITIEY - SHEITEE R
JEE) - IRBIBIB800 R ALLHE D EHEMBLE
REBE KM -

HKIRCE S EMNER - T KXEEFE LN =
PR R L EMMES - 2022 F EEHEHED =
BEIBROAPI (FERRANE) MATRERL
I0C (ARFEIZ) » B FEFortinet * Trend Micro -
HKCERTUBEE D ZEEHBMAMERIEESE
JB - BINCybersec Infohubthik A% —EH A&
WAREREIZNTES ©
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HKIRC hopes to share with all sectors its knowledge and
experience in cyber security over the past years and advocates
the importance of cybersecurity, as such it has been allocating
resources to talent training. Since its first launch in 2021, the
“Cyber Youth Programme”, which was widely acclaimed, returned
with great success last year and experts in the community were
invited to share to students some first-hand information and
knowledge, and more than 370 students from over 100 middle
schools were attracted, reflecting that schools are also concerned
about cybersecurity education and students are interested in
acquiring relevant knowledge to equip themselves.

Meanwhile, as youngsters nowadays use the Internet at an earlier
study stage, HKIRC decided to expand service to include the
junior school group. In particular, teaching is carried out in a
lively and joyful manner by combining cartoons comics and online
games, with the anticipation of develop students’ awareness
of cybersecurity. The “1st Cybersecurity Quiz Competition for
Primary School Students” was held to motivate students to learn
through the programme. The knowledge learnt can protect
them from cyberattacks. The event was highly received by the
community, teachers, students and the management of the
schools, which fully affirmed the Programme.

Now that the Internet is an integral part of everyone's daily
life, it is important that people with disabilities can access the
Internet without any barriers. The “Web Accessibility Recognition
Scheme” was launched to encourage social inclusion and
advance accessibility to enterprises in different industries, and
to champion digital accessibility and inclusion for the Hong
Kong online community. The scheme recognises enterprises and
organisations that adopt accessible designs in their websites
and mobile applications, thus helping to create a more inclusive
society in Hong Kong. The scheme is open to all local enterprises
and organisations.

Enterprises and organisations participating in the scheme
are offered a free assessment of their websites and mobile
applications, and an advisory service on ways of enhancing their
accessibility. Recognised websites and mobile applications can
display the scheme’s logo on their marketing materials. HKIRC
has been running the programme since 2018. Over the years,
the programme has gained ever-widening support from the
community, with awardees coming from all sectors (including
public transport, banking, media corporates and universities).
This year, 480 websites and mobile apps were enrolled under the
Scheme, representing an increase of nearly 20% over last year,
which was encouraging. In 2022, HKIRC remained the primary
organiser of the Scheme, with the Office of the Government Chief
Information Officer as co-organiser and the Equal Opportunities
Commission as independent advisor.

Highlights of the Year
FEEZR
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We believe that good coding practices in web accessibility design
can ensure that online functionalities and content is accessible to
all regardless of disability, helping to bridge the digital divide and
empower people with disabilities.

HKIRC fully recognises the importance of integrating
environmental considerations into its business development
plans, in order to reduce its environmental impact while growing
its business. We are becoming more environmentally conscious
in our daily operations. To reduce our carbon footprint, HKIRC is
adopting energy efficient LED lighting in its offices. Employees
are encouraged, when leaving the office, to switch off computers
or set them to sleep mode, and turn off unnecessary electronic
devices and lighting.

To reduce waste and protect the environment, we are
implementing a paperless office strategy that involves
converting documents to e-copies and e-filing to minimise paper
consumption. Recycling areas have also been set up on offices to
facilitate recycling. By introducing these environmentally friendly
measures, we are getting our staff involved in developing best
practices to save energy and reduce waste.

The Internet Corporation for Assigned Names and Numbers
(“ICANN") is a non-profit-making multi-stakeholder organisation
headquartered in Los Angeles. Its primary mission is to maintain
the security and stability of the Internet Protocol addressing and
Internet domain name system, and to administer the allocation
of Internet Protocol addresses and top-level domains. HKIRC
actively participated in ICANN meetings, to keep abreast of
the latest policy developments. HKIRC also took part in various
ICANN working groups, such as ccNSO (Country Code Names
Supporting Organisation).

The Chinese Domain Name Consortium (“CDNC”) is an
independent non-for-profit organisation that facilitates
communication and coordination regarding the technical
standards and policies of the Chinese Domain Name System. It
was founded in 2000 by CNNIC (the Chinese Internet Network
Information Centre), TWNIC (the Taiwan Network Information
Centre), HKIRC, and MONIC (the Macao Network Information
Centre). With the support of language experts in Hong Kong,
Taiwan, and mainland China, more Hong Kong characters are
becoming available for domain registration. The concerted efforts
of CDNC members have also led to email servers around the
world now being able to support email addresses configured
in Chinese characters. CDNC members will continue to work
together to promote the adoption of Chinese domain names
around the world.
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The directors submit herewith their annual report together with
the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2022.

Hong Kong Internet Registration Corporation Limited (“the
Company”) is a company incorporated and domiciled in Hong
Kong and has its registered office and principal place of business
at Unit 501, Level 5, Core C, Cyberport 3, 100 Cyberport Road,
Hong Kong.

The principal activity of the Company and its subsidiary (“the
Group”) is to administer the registration system for all levels of
internet domain names under the Hong Kong country-code top
level domain “.hk” and its equivalents. This includes, among other
tasks, the development and maintenance of a self-regulatory
policy framework for the administration of internet domain names
under the “.hk” and “.&" country-code top level domains, and
providing “.hk” and “.&#” domain names resolution services.
The Company also promotes, for the benefit of the Hong Kong
community, a better understanding and use of the internet
and related technology. The Company is a non-profit making
organisation undertaking the above activities in the context of
a Memorandum of Understanding with the Government of Hong
Kong Special Administrative Region dated 17 March 2010.

The principal activity and other particulars of a subsidiary are set
out in note 8 to the financial statements.

Directors’ Report
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Directors’ Report

EZRHRESE

Fair review of the business of the Group and a discussion and
analysis of the Group’s performance during the year and the material
factors underlying its results and financial position, including analysis
using financial key performance indicators

BRAEEEBNTEER  AEEFARRERARITUARERERE
ROBRANERAE - BIEERROMBRRIBEETHODN

Description of the principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group

N £% [ 8] P I e o B2 R K TN RETE PRI R O A

Particulars of important events affecting the Group that have occurred
since the end of the financial year

RMBFEETHEEEMBAREEZENEASMHFR

Outlook of the Group’s business

AEBOEBAR

Details regarding the Group’s performance; and compliance with the
relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
Group

FRAEBRRANETHAREAEATZENEBERERFE

An account of the Group’s relationship with its key stakeholders

ROR AR B EE F 2R E AR
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The profit of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022 and
the state of the Group’s and the Company’s affairs as at that date
are set out in the financial statements on pages 53 to 87.

Under the provisions of the Company’'s Memorandum of
Association, accumulated funds of the Company are not available
for distribution to members and are to be used solely for
promotion of the objects of the Company.

In relation to the increase in the bank balance in financial year
2022 compared with financial year 2021, the directors are
obliged to draw readers’ attention to the fact that part of the
bank balance is actually deferred registration income which
can only be realised in the future according to a clearly defined
time schedule (see note 12 to the financial statements). Also,
such increase does not indicate a trend for the coming years.
The Management and Board of the Group and the Company will
continue to manage the Group's and the Company's finances with
due regard to its public mission, planned institutional changes
and stakeholder expectations. These include, for example, the
financial implications arising from the Registry/Registrar model
and the need for investments in the Group's and the Company’s
technology and support infrastructure in order to provide
business-friendly, secure and robust domain name registration
services.

Charitable donations made by the Group during the year
amounted to HK$Nil (2021: HK$Nil).

The directors during the financial year were:

Mr Simon CHAN Sai Ming, BBS, JP (Chairman)
Mr Gabriel PANG Tsz Kit (Deputy Chairman)
Mr Leonard CHAN Tik Yuen (Deputy Chairman)
Mr Raymond CHENG Siu Hong (Deputy Chairman)
Dr Wendy LEE Woon Ming
Mr Sean LEE Fan Fung
Dr Winnie, TANG Shuk Ming, MH, JP
Mr Charles LEE Chung Tak

(appointed on 13 May 2022)
Mr Ben LI Ming Pan

(retired on 13 May 2022)
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Directors’ Report

EZRHRESE

In accordance with Article 37 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Mr Pang Tsz Kit and Mr Chan Tik Yuen will retire at
the forthcoming annual general meeting.

The directors of the Company’s subsidiary, Hong Kong Domain
Name Registration Company Limited, during the year and up to
the date of this report are the same as the Company as set out
above.

At no time during the year was the Company or its subsidiary a
party to any arrangements to enable the directors of the Company
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or
debenture of the Company or any other body corporate.

A permitted indemnity provision (as defined in section 469 of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance) for the benefit of the directors
of the Company is currently in force and was in force throughout
this year.

No transaction, arrangement or contract of significance to which
the Company or its subsidiary was a party and in which a director
of the Company had a material interest, subsisted at the end of
the year or at any time during the year.

KPMG retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of KPMG as
auditors of the Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting.

By order of the board
Chan Sai Ming
Chairman

3 April 2023
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KPMG

Independent auditor’s report to the members of Hong Kong
Internet Registration Corporation Limited
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability by guarantee)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Hong
Kong Internet Registration Corporation Limited (“the Company”)
and its subsidiary (together “the Group”) set out on pages 53
to 87, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2022, the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow
statement for the year then ended and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2022 and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are independent of
the Company in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (“the Code”) and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Information other than the consolidated financial
statements and auditor’s report thereon

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information included in the annual
report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

Independent Auditor’s Report
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Independent Auditor’s Report

B AR &

Information other than the consolidated financial
statements and auditor’s report thereon
(continued)

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

Responsibility of the directors for the consolidated
financial statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group'’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibility for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is made
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 405 of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We
do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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Auditor’s responsibility for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements (continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Independent Auditor’s Report
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Independent Auditor’s Report

B AR &

Auditor’s responsibility for the audit of the REMHREA RSV BERRAIENS R

consolidated financial statements (continued) (#]&)

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the e B OEBEEENERAEKFDNIBKE
financial information of the entities or business activities RERRRE  FENEFNERE  UEH
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated FEVBREREXRER - BZMBE &
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, SEEHANAR  BEBEHNT - KMA
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain B BERAE2HNER -

solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other BREMEBIAIN - HMIHEEZEB TAHEINETE
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant - FE%HE  EXEFERE  BERMNESR
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal 5t a5 AR 1% 6l (F (o] & KRB -

control that we identify during our audit.

KPMG EERSMEB
Certified Public Accountants HESE AT

8th Floor, Prince’s Building BEEFIR

10 Chater Road EITE105%
Central, Hong Kong KFRESE

3 April 2023 2023%F 4 A3H
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

SReBEaRkEtAEZEKER

for the year ended 31 December 2022 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

BZE20225F 12831 A L FE (LUBESIR)

Note 2022 2021
LiEsd 20224 20214
Revenue EES 2 $ 33,667,805 $ 34,317,402
Other net income EUg A\ 558 3 3,471,762 1,906,928
U S 87,139,567 $ 36,224,330
Expenses before public mission Xt ARFEHFHERAR
activities expenses and MENZE
depreciation
Staff costs B TR 4b) $ (17,087,349) $ (16,073,369)
Office costs WREKA (1,261,316) (1,139,529)
Marketing costs MG (855,124) (540,593)
IT & networks costs B AR R AR A AR (1,724,755) (1,285,991)
Operating costs AN (5,546,770) (4,264,996)
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, $__(26,475,314) $ (23,304,478)
Operating profit before public KT ARFEWITHEAR
mission activities expenses HENLE R
and depreciation $ 10,664,253 $ 12,919,852
Public mission activities expenses ARfEwm/EEE H 4(d) (11,805,947) (7,596,949)
Operating (loss) / profit before  RIHFENEE (FHE) HR
depreciation $ (1,141,694) $ 5,322,903
Depreciation e 4(c) (4,593,946) (4,777,362)
(Loss)/profit from operations REmE (BER) ORR $ (5,735,640) $ 545,541
Finance costs B 7 X R 4(a) (146,196) (259,199)
(Loss)/profit before taxation BB AT (&518), = F 4 $ (5,881,836) $ 286,342
Income tax FriSHi 6(a) - -
(Loss)/profit and total KEE (FB)BAR
comprehensive income for the ZHEWHAEE
year $ (5,881,836) $ 286,342

The notes on pages 57 to 87 form part of these financial

statements.

FE7TESTEMNM B AT BREMN—I -
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
e SRR 3

at 31 December 2022 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
20225128318 (LB¥5IR)

Note 2022 2021
B 5 2022 F 20214
Non-current assets EREBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - BE REE 7 $ 8,467,790 $ 5,298,924
Deposits by geia 9 654,659 =
$ 9,122,449 $ 5,298,924
Current assets REBEE
Trade and other receivables B 5 EWERT R
H b fE UL IR 9 $ 5,041,735 $ 3,631,563
Cash and bank deposits e RIRITFERK 10 197,255,235 201,178,059
e $ 202,296,970 $ 204,809,622
Current liabilities REEE
Other payables E 3R 11 $ 13,518,643 $ 9,258,139
Deferred registration income i T KA 12 21,122,702 21,653,674
Lease liabilities HERE 2,390,264 2,764,439
. $ 387,031,609 $ 33,676,252
_Netcurrentassets nBEEFE $ 165,265,361 $ 171,133,370
_Total assets less current liabilities RERERZBHRE $ 174,387,810 $ 176,432,294
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Deferred registration income R IE KA 12 $ 19,919,066 $ 19,937,174
Lease liabilities HEARE 4,614,139 758,679
. $ 24533205 $ 20,695,853
NET ASSETS EEFE $ 149,854,605 $ 155,736,441
Representing: (A
Retained profits REER $ 149,854,605 $ 155,736,441

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on  EFBH2023F4 A3RAZEW A E L -
3 April 2023.

Chan Sai Ming CHENG Siu Hong
R 41 B3 BN

Chairman Director

FE B

The notes on pages 57 to 87 form part of these financial #57Z=87BMMSTBAMBHREN—IH o
statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

GEREZBER

for the year ended 31 December 2022 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
EZ2022F12A31 B LFE (UB¥IR)

Retained

profits

R =R

Balance at 1 January 2021 7A20215F1 81 B WEER $ 155,450,099
Change in equity for 2021: R2021 FHERBE :

Profit and total comprehensive income Rl PR Gy k- 286,342

Balance at 31 December 2021 and 7A2021%F12 831 H K% 2022F1 A1 A4S

1 January 2022 $ 155,736,441
Change in equity for 2022: R2022 F WRELR BB :

Loss and total comprehensive income EERkEEKERE (5,881,836)

Balance at 31 December 2022 A2022%F12 B31 B & & $ 149,854,605

The notes on pages 57 to 87 form part of these financial #57ZE87 EMMiT@BAMBHEN—H5H -
statements.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement —
AN B =
meRERER
for the year ended 31 December 2022 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
HZ2022F 12831 BILFEE (LUB¥HIR)
Note 2022 2021
g 20224 20214
Operating activities R
(Loss)/profit before taxation BR&LRT (B518), a A $ (5,881,836) $ 286,342
Adjustments: FE
Depreciation e 4(c) 4,593,946 4,777,362
Interest income B U A 3 (3,022,511) (1,425,859)
Loss on disposal of property, plant BEEW*  BE R
and equipment BYEEE=ES 4(c) - 99,383
Finance costs B RS A AR 4(a) 146,196 259,199
Operating (loss)/profit before BEESBBANKE
changes in working capital (E8), &R $ (4,164,205) $ 3,996,427
(Increase)/decrease in trade and other & 5 & UK BR 7k Kz E th g U 3%
receivables (3&hn), m (2,064,831) 1,342,238
Increase/(decrease) in other payables E R ZIEM (R L) 4,260,504 (212,007)
Decrease in deferred registration R FE U AR A
income (549,080) (189,353)

Net cash (used in)/generated from  && £ (FrH),/

operating activities FBESFE $ (2,517,612) $ 4,937,305
Investing activities REEE
Interest received B U F 8 $ 3,022,511 $ 1,425,859
Decrease/(increase) in bank deposits T HiBBE =8 A 2 R17T

maturing after three months when FRORA /(38 0n)

placed 5,062,897 (4,209,629)
Payment for purchase of property, BEME  BEREENRK

plant and equipment (1,269,698) (562,885)

Net cash generated from/(used in) REFEBHRE (FiH)

___Investing activites REFE $ 6815710 $ (3,346,655)
Financing activities mEEE
Capital element of lease rentals paid BNESESED 10(b) $ (38,011,829) $ (2,941,700)
Interest element of lease rentals paid B2 HEESFE3H 10(b) (146,196) (259,199)
Net cash used in financing activities E& ;EEFTAR S FHE $ (3,158,025) $ (3,200,899)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and BE&RBEEZEYHEM

cash equivalents OR2) F5E $ 1,140,073 $ (1,610,249)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 MA1EHNEER

January REEEY 7,295,518 8,905,767
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 R12A31ENEER

December REZEEY 10(a) $ 8,435,591 $ 7,295518

The notes on pages 57 to 87 form part of these financial 57287 EMNWEBATBREN—ED o
statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA #5I7R)

1 Significant accounting policies

(a)

(b)

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"), which
collective term includes all applicable individual
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs") and
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”"), accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and
the requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. Significant accounting policies adopted
by Hong Kong Internet Registration Corporation
Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiary (together
referred to as “the Group”) are disclosed below.

The HKICPA has issued certain amendments to
HKFRSs that are first effective or available for
early adoption for the current accounting period of
the Group. Note 1(c) provides information on any
changes in accounting policies resulting from initial
application of these developments to the extent that
they are relevant to the Group for the current and
prior accounting periods reflected in these financial
statements.

Basis of preparation of the financial
statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2022 comprise the Company
and its subsidiary.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of
the financial statements is the historical cost basis.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect
the application of policies and reported amounts
of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based
on historical experience and various other factors
that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis
of making the judgements about carrying values of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

1 FESFHEE

(a)

(b)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A M RARMEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA #%7R)

1

HONG KONG INTERNET REGISTRATION CORPORATION LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2022

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Basis of preparation of the financial
statements (continued)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period
in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current and
future periods.

Changes in accounting policies

The HKICPA has issued certain amendments to
HKFRSs that are first effective or available for early
adoption for the current accounting period of the
Group.

None of these developments have had a material
effect on how the company’s result and financial
position for the current or prior periods have been
prepared or presented. The company has not
applied any new standard or interpretation that is
not yet effective for the current accounting period.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group.
The Group controls an entity when it is exposed or
has right, to variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the entity. When
assessing whether the Group has power, only
substantive rights (held by the Group and other
parties) are considered.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA #5I7R)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(d)

(e)

Subsidiaries (continued)

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into
the consolidated financial statements from the date
that control commences until the date that control
ceases. Intra-group balances, transactions and
cash flows and any unrealised profits arising from
intra-group transactions are eliminated in full in
preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in the same way as
unrealised gain but only to the extent that there is no
evidence of impairment.

Changes in the Group's interests in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions, whereby adjustments are made
to the amounts of controlling and non-controlling
interests within consolidated equity to reflect the
change in relative interests, but no adjustments are
made to goodwill and no gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in
that subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in
that former subsidiary at the date when control is
lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of
a financial asset or, when appropriate, the cost on
initial recognition of an investment in an associate or
joint venture.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less
impairment losses.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, including right-of-use
assets arising from leases of underlying property,
plant and equipment (see note 1(f)), is stated at
cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A M RARMEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA #%7R)

1

HONG KONG INTERNET REGISTRATION CORPORATION LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2022

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(e)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost
of items of property, plant and equipment, less
their estimated residual value, if any, using the
straight-line method over their estimated useful lives
as follows:

- Office machinery and equipment 3 years
- Furniture and fixtures 3 - 6 years
- Network and computer hardware/ 3 years

software and equipment

- Right-of-use assets are
depreciated over the unexpired
term of lease

Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value,
if any, are reviewed annually.

The carrying amounts of property, plant and
equipment are reviewed for indications of impairment
at the end of each reporting period. An impairment
loss is recognised in profit or loss if the carrying
amount of an asset, or the cash-generating unit to
which it belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount of an asset, or of the cash
generating unit to which it belongs, is the greater
of its fair value less costs of disposal and value in
use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the asset. An impairment loss
is reversed if there has been a favourable change
in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA #5I7R)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(e)

(f)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or
disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment
are determined as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
item and are recognised in profit or loss on the date
of retirement or disposal.

Leased assets

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses
whether the contract is, or contains, a lease. A
contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange
for consideration. Control is conveyed where the
customer has both the right to direct the use of the
identified asset and to obtain substantially all of the
economic benefits from that use.

(i) As a lessee

Where the contract contains lease
component(s) and non-lease component(s),
the Group has elected not to separate
non-lease components and accounts for
each lease component and any associated
non-lease components as a single lease
component for all leases.

At the lease commencement date, the Group
recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease
liability, except for short-term leases that have
a lease term of 12 months or less and leases
of low-value assets. When the Group enters
into a lease in respect of a low-value asset,
the Group decides whether to capitalise the
lease on a lease-by-lease basis. The lease
payments associated with those leases which
are not capitalised are recognised as an
expense on a systematic basis over the lease
term.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A M RARMEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA #%7R)

1

HONG KONG INTERNET REGISTRATION CORPORATION LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2022

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(f)

Leased assets (continued)

(i)

As a lessee (continued)

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease
liability is initially recognised at the present
value of the lease payments payable over
the lease term, discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot
be readily determined, using a relevant
incremental borrowing rate. After initial
recognition, the lease liability is measured
at amortised cost and interest expense is
calculated using the effective interest method.
Variable lease payments that do not depend
on an index or rate are not included in the
measurement of the lease liability and hence
are charged to profit or loss in the accounting
period in which they are incurred.

The right-of-use asset recognised when a
lease is capitalised is initially measured at
cost, which comprises the initial amount of
the lease liability plus any lease payments
made at or before the commencement date,
and any initial direct costs incurred. Where
applicable, the cost of the right-of-use
assets also includes an estimate of costs to
dismantle and remove the underlying asset or
to restore the underlying asset or the site on
which it is located, discounted to their present
value, less any lease incentives received.
The right-of-use asset is subsequently stated
at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses (see note 1(e)).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA #5I7R)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(f) Leased assets (continued)

(i)

As a lessee (continued)

The lease liability is remeasured when there
is a change in future lease payments arising
from a change in an index or rate, or there
is a change in the Group’s estimate of the
amount expected to be payable under a
residual value guarantee, or there is a change
arising from the reassessment of whether the
Group will be reasonably certain to exercise
a purchase, extension or termination option.
When the lease liability is remeasured in this
way, a corresponding adjustment is made to
the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset,
or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying
amount of the right-of-use asset has been
reduced to zero.

In the consolidated statement of financial
position, the current portion of long-term
lease liabilities is determined as the present
value of contractual payments that are due
to be settled within twelve months after
the reporting period. The Group presents
right-of-use assets within the same line item
as similar underlying assets and presents
lease liabilities separately.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A M RARMEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA #%7R)

1

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(9)

Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right
to receive consideration is unconditional if only
the passage of time is required before payment
of that consideration is due. If revenue has been
recognised before the Group has an unconditional
right to receive consideration, the amount is
presented as a contract asset.

Receivables are stated at amortised cost using the
effective interest method less allowance for credit
losses as determined below:

The loss allowance is measured at an amount
equal to lifetime expected credit losses (“ECLs"),
which are those losses that are expected to occur
over the expected life of the trade receivables.
The loss allowance is estimated using a provision
matrix based on the Group’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to
the debtors and an assessment of both the current
and forecast general economic conditions at the
reporting date.

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date with
any changes recognised as an impairment gain
or loss in profit or loss. The Group recognises
an impairment gain or loss with a corresponding
adjustment to the carrying amount of trade and other
receivables through a loss allowance account.

1
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA #5I7R)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(9)

(h)

()

Trade and other receivables (continued)

The gross carrying amount of a trade debtor or other
receivable is written off (either partially or in full)
to the extent that there is no realistic prospect of
recovery. This is generally the case when the Group
determines that the debtor does not have assets
or sources of income that could generate sufficient
cash flows to repay the amounts subject to the
write-off.

Other payables and contract liabilities
(i) Other payables

Other payables are initially recognised at fair
value and subsequently stated at amortised
cost unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at
cost.

(iiy  Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when the
customer pays non-refundable consideration
before the Group recognises the related
revenue (see note 1(m)). A contract liability
would also be recognised if the Group has an
unconditional right to receive non-refundable
consideration before the Group recognises
the related revenue. In such cases, a
corresponding receivable would be
recognised (see note 1(Q)).

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and on hand, demand deposits with banks and
other financial institutions, and short-term, highly
liguid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been
within three months of maturity at acquisition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A M RARMEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA #%7R)

1

HONG KONG INTERNET REGISTRATION CORPORATION LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2022

Significant accounting policies (continued)

)

(k)

Employee benefits

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans and the cost of non-monetary benefits are
accrued in the year in which the associated services
are rendered by employees. Where payment or
settlement is deferred and the effect would be
material, these amounts are stated at their present
values.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities.
Current tax and movements in deferred tax assets
and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss except
to the extent that they relate to items recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, in which case the relevant amounts of tax
are recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the
taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted
or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect
of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from
deductible and taxable temporary differences
respectively, being the differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial
reporting purposes and their tax bases. Deferred
tax assets also arise from unused tax losses and
unused tax credits. Apart from differences which
arise on initial recognition of assets and liabilities,
all deferred tax liabilities, and all deferred tax assets
to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profits will be available against which the asset can
be utilised, are recognised.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured
based on the expected manner of realisation or
settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and
liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period. Deferred
tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA #5I7R)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

)

(m)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of
uncertain timing or amount when the Group has a
legal or constructive obligation arising as a result
of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made.
Where the time value of money is material, provisions
are stated at the present value of the expenditure
expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic
benefits is remote.

Revenue and other income

Income is classified by the Group as revenue when
it arises from the provision of services in the ordinary
course of the Group’s business.

Revenue is recognised when control over a service
is transferred to the customer at the amount of
promised consideration to which the Group is
expected to be entitled, excluding those amounts
collected on the behalf of third parties.

Further details of the Group’s revenue and other
income recognition policies are as follows:

(i) Registration fees income

Registration fees income is recognised
over time on a straight-line basis over the
registration period of one to five years.
Fees received relating to future periods are
classified as deferred registration income
in the consolidated statement of financial
position.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A M RARMEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA #%7R)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued) 1
(m) Revenue and other income (continued)
(iiy  Service fees income

Service fees income is recognised based on
the performance obligation identified in the
contract with customers.

(iii)  Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues
under the effective interest method using the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash receipts through the expected life of the
financial asset to the gross carrying amount of
the financial asset.

(iv) Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position
initially when there is reasonable assurance
that they will be received and that the Group
will comply with the conditions attaching to
them. Grants that compensate the Group for
expenses incurred are recognised as income
in profit or loss on a systematic basis in the
same periods in which the expenses are
incurred or deducted in reporting the related
expense.

(n) Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies and non-monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies that are stated at fair value are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of
the reporting period. Exchange gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA #5I7R)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(o) Related parties

(a)

A person, or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to the Group if that person:

has control or joint control over the
Group;

has significant influence over the
Group; or

is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the Group’s
parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions apply:

(iii)

(iv)

The entity and the Group are members
of the same group (which means that
each parent, subsidiary and fellow
subsidiary is related to the others).

One entity is an associate or joint
venture of the other entity (or an
associate or joint venture of a member
of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the
same third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a
third entity and the other entity is an
associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of
either the Group or an entity related to
the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A M RARMEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA #%7R)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued) 1
(o) Related parties (continued)

(vi)  The entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has
significant influence over the entity or
is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group
of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the
Group or the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.

2 Revenue 2

The principal activity of the Company is administrating
the registration of internet domain names under “.hk” and
“ & country-code top level domains. The Company
provides registration of domain names through its
registrars, one of which is its wholly-owned subsidiary.

Revenue represents total income from provision of domain
name registration services. The amount of each significant
category of revenue from contracts with customers within
the scope of HKFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts with
Customers, is as follows:

Registration fees Rl
Service fees AR5 &

FTESHHE (H)
(o) FEAEER (8)

(vip #%E®BXH LA
7

(viiy  E#tZE(a)(i)EA

(vii) ZEBXEMBSE
EAHERKER
AlAASEESAE
ERSNSIE3E
EIEANBR o

ERALHIRRERSS o
RGP EEZBATHIHEARENR
B o

4L
ARRAMEBEBREREBHEIER
A (B[ hk) R [ B MEMER -
ARABBLEMREE (Khz— R
2AMBRF) RO MRS -

EEBERREHRERZMRBHRA L
B RRBEABVWHMEERFE 165 —H
BRI AN RBENERFET
IRMEHNEREANBASENT ¢

2022 2021
2022 F 20214

$ 32,460,727 $ 33,113,700
1,207,078 1,203,702

$ 33,667,805 $ 34,317,402
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA #5I7R)

Revenue (continued)

Revenue expected to be recognised in the future arising
from contracts with customers in existence at the reporting
date.

As at 31 December 2022, the aggregated amount of the
transaction price allocated to the remaining performance
obligations under the Company’'s existing contracts is
$41,041,768 (2021: $41,590,848). This amount represents
revenue expected to be recognised in the future from
deferred registration income (see note 12).

Other net income

2 EXE(E

BHRARE THEADFENRERE
FHRHBERPIIZME A -

MN2022F12A31H » ARFWMEAEYD
THHEBHEANSIER S ERBER
41,041,7687C (20214 : 41,590,848
TL) ° e EIETEHER A RERK G IE
MU ARIMA (RBHEE12)

3 HMWRAFE

2022 2021
20224 20214
Bank interest income ERITH B U $ 3,022,511 $ 1,425,859
Exchange loss, net P& 5 B8 558 (3,100) (981)
Sundry income HETE A 452,351 482,050
$ 3,471,762 $ 1,906,928
Profit before taxation 4 R %1 A % F
Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging: PR A& M E F0BR T 51 %8 -
(a) Finance costs (a) EIEERA
2022 2021
20224 20214
Interest on lease liabilities HEaFEf e (fE10(b))
(note 10(b)) $ 146,196 $ 259,199

(b) Staff costs

Contributions to defined
contribution retirement plan

Salaries, wages and other
benefits

e TERHEMEN

(b) BIRE
2022

2022 %

FUE HEEURRET BIRO K

$ 398,339 $ 416,981

16,689,010 15,656,388

$ 17,087,349 $ 16,073,369

Staff costs for 2022 were net of wage subsidies
from the Government of $842,705 to compensate
the Group for employment of IT Trainees (2021
$1,051,384).

2022 E TR AR EA S E
BAITEIEENKRF TEME
842,7057T (20214 : 1,051,384
JT) e
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A M RARMEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA #%7R)

4

HONG KONG INTERNET REGISTRATION CORPORATION LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2022

(c)

Profit before taxation (continued) 4 RREL AR (48)
Other items (c) H#ER
2022 2021
20224 20214
Depreciation charge (note 7)  #r&RI (M5£7)
— owned property, plant and —EENYME - BE &R
equipment 1,697,177 $ 1,842,151
- right-of-use assets —(REEE 2,896,769 2,935,211
4,593,946 $ 4,777,362
Auditor’'s remuneration ZE RN <
— audit services — FEARTS 226,700 $ 221,400
- tax services — BB RS 55,500 54,800
Loss on disposal of property, BREWZ - BEMZENEE
plant and equipment - 99,383
Public mission activities expenses (d AREWETBEH

(d)

Public mission activities expenses represent
the expenses incurred in respect of public
mission activities including the Web Accessibility
Recognition Scheme, the Cybersecurity project, the
Cybersecurity Infohub platform, the Cyber Youth
Programme, the Machine-to-machine Cybersecurity
information sharing, Digital Marketplace Seminar,
the Cyber Defense Hub, Staff Cybersecurity
Training-as-a-service and Game aided Learning for
Cyber Security. Public mission activities of the Group
are to organise, co-organise, fund, seed, sponsor
and co-sponsor activities to make Hong Kong an
inclusive and secured environment for the use of the
internet, and to encourage the use of the internet
and related technologies. All direct expenses
incurred for the primary and dominant purpose of
public mission and that contribute to the successful
running of public mission activities are considered
as public mission activities expenses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA #5I7R)

Directors’ emoluments 5 ESHe

Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) RIBEEBCARED)EI83(1)KERLA
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and Part 2 of the Al (BRREFFRER) RO E2HHE
Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of ZEEMEHT -

Directors) Regulation are as follows:

2022 2021
20224 20214
Directors’ fees EEHEe $ - $ =
Salaries, allowance and benefits in kind %% - 28 kB - -
Discretionary bonuses 5 E 5 - -
Retirement scheme contributions RIRET SR - -
Income tax in the consolidated statement 6 GeBEEkEMZEKERAT
of profit or loss and other comprehensive W ER 8B
income
(a) Taxation in the consolidated statement of (a) HREBEBRHEMRERZERRT
profit or loss and other comprehensive THBIE
income

The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for 2022 is
calculated at 16.5 % (2021: 16.5%) of the estimated
assessable profits for the year. The Company is
exempted from Hong Kong Profits Tax according to
section 87 of the Inland Revenue Ordinance.

(b) Reconciliation between tax expenses and (b)

accounting (loss)/profit at applicable tax
rate:

(Loss)/profit before taxation BRELAT (E51R), @

$

2022 F W BB RIS H BB RIZAR
FEMMGFTETHFEA16.5%
(20214 : 16.5%) TR E -
RABCRISEBI) B 8715 - AR
ERPHMEENEH -

BiEZ HEEE (FR) &
NZBEABRAENYHIR

2022 2021
2022 F 20214

(5,881,836) $ 286,342

Notional tax on (loss)/profit before 1ZBRFT %K 16.5% (20214 :

taxation, calculated at 16.5% 16.5%) sF E R ELRT

(2021: 16.5%) (B1B),/ #HME&BE $  (970,503) $ 47,246
Tax effect of non-taxable revenue  HBZERFUW A KIS 52 2 (60) (32)
Tax effect of unused tax losses EBAAFBHEBEEED

utilised W (8,350) (4,978)
Tax effect of (loss)/profit exempted F RSB TER (Fig),

from profits tax calculation a1 B 7S 978,913 (42,236)
Actual tax expense ERBIAS T $ - $ =
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A M RARMEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA #%7R)

7
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Property, plant and equipment

M - BERRE

Network and

Office computer
machinery hardware/
Right-of-use and Furniture  software and
assets equipment  and fixtures equipment
REREM
N Bt/ &
ERELE k##E  BARRE SEL ]
Cost: A
At 1 January 2022 R2022€1R1H $ 9,963,448 377,190 § 3,770,737 $ 17,593,753 $ 31,705,128
Additions #E 6,493,114 - - 1,269,698 7,762,812
Disposals RE (8,228,849) - - (907,643)  (9,136,492)
| A Devanber 2022 N2022F12A31A § 8221713 § 377,190 _§ 3,770,737 § 17,955,808 § 30,331,448
Accumulated depreciation: REHE !
At 1 January 2022 202251 A 18 $ 6,594,972 375,356 § 3,173,687 $ 16,262,189 $ 26,406,204
Charge for the year AEETH 2,896,769 1,834 536,478 1,158,865 4,593,946
Written back on disposals REREE (8,228,849) - - (907,643)  (9,136,492)
_At31December2022 W2022%F 124318 § 1262892 § 377,190 § 3,710,165 § 16,513,411 § 21,863,658
Net book value: RERE:
At 31 December 2022 202212310  § 6,964,821 - $§ 60572 $ 1,442397 $ 8,467,790
Cost: B
At 1 January 2021 202151418 $ 9,963,448 380,168 § 3,770,737 § 17,627,621 § 31,741,974
Additions BE - - - 562,885 562,885
Disposals RE - (2,978) - (596,753) (599,731)
| A5 Desomoer 202 R2021F12/31H _§ 9963448 8 . 877,190 § 3770787 $ 17,598,753 881705128
Accumulated depreciation: ZitiE
At 1 January 2021 M202151 718 $ 3,659,761 364,084 § 2615558 § 15,489,787 § 22,129,190
Charge for the year KEETH 2,935,211 14,250 558,129 1,069,772 4,777,362
Written back on disposals RENER - (2,978) - (497,370) (500,348)
_At31December2021 W2021F12/31H _ § 6594972 § 3753% _§ 3,173,687 § 16262189 § 26,406,204
Net book value: BEFE
At 31 December 2021 R2021F12A318  $ 3,368,476 1834 § 597,060 § 1,331,564 § 5298924




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA #5I7R)

7 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

(a)

Right-of-use assets

The analysis of the net book value of right-of-use
assets by class of underlying asset is as follows:

HEBRNYME  BITE

Property leased for

7 ME- BERSKHEGE)

(a) EREEE
WHEREEEMNB S MERESR
EREFESNNAT :

2022

20224

own use, carried at A A BR
depreciated cost (i) $ 4,890,101 $ 1,499,167
Internet facilities, carried B4R @ RITEKA
at depreciated cost ABR (i) 2,074,720 1,869,309
$ 6,964,821 $ 3,368,476
The analysis of expense items in relation to leases HERGHHEANEHER BN
recognised in profit or loss is as follows: THEAWHET ¢
2022 2021
2022%F 20214
Depreciation charge of right- RIAAEEERE D rEA
of-use assets by class of EEEMTERX
underlying asset
Property leased for own use HEBRMY= $ 1,716,715 $ 1,718,790
Internet facilities BB AR 1,180,054 1,216,421

$ 2,896,769 $ 2,935211

Interest on lease liabilities
(note 4(a))

HEBEFE (M)

$ 146,196 $ 259,199

During the year, additions to right-of-use assets
were $6,493,114 (2021: $nil). This amount related to
the capitalised lease payment payable under new
lease agreements for internet facilities and renewed
tenancy agreement for a property leased for own
use.

Details of total cash outflows for leases and the
maturity analysis of lease liabilities are set out in
notes 10(c) and 16(b), respectively.

NEFE - FREEEEN
6,493,11478 (20214 : Bj)
ZeFHEBEIBAR ENHME
EmEEEaAMENKEST
HEHBZENOERNMCBERNK
BEY -

HEReRHARENFELAEE
BENIED WD BT K
10(c) M 16(b) °

c) &1

ESHHAZMEEARAT 2022 FERE

75



e

4 S
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA #%7R)

7  Property, plant and equipment (continued) 7 M - BMERRE (&)
(a) Right-of-use assets (continued) (a) FREEEE)
(i)  Property leased for own use (y HEBRN®ME
The Group has obtained the right to use REBEERBEEHEE
a property as its office through a tenancy SERMEERBAER
agreement. The lease runs for a period of 3 HEF| - HERBHSF -
years.
(i)  Other leases (i EMHEE
The Group leases internet facilities under REERBE2Z4F A
leases running for a period of 2-4 years. MAOME T AR o T
None of the leases includes variable lease BHEHTBREAEHEE
payments. E
8 Investment in a subsidiary 8 MRHEBARNRKRE
The Company’s investment in a subsidiary was fully HE2014F12A31HILLFE - REHAE
impaired during the year ended 31 December 2014 NEIATREIHEAOFTE - AR AR B
based on an assessment of its recoverable amount. At 31 RNEIRIRE 2 HURE - R2022%F12 A 31
December 2022, the directors carried out an assessment of H EZRMERAWEARMNKRENK
the recoverable amount of the investment in a subsidiary. B EEEEITAI M - BBESEHTME - K
Based on their review, no reversal of impairment losses FEREFERISE D EITER °

was recognised during the year.

Percentage
of issued
capital
Place of directly
incorporation Particulars of held by the
Name of company and operation issued capital Company Principal activity
APBEE
MR LK BRTRE HANERT
AR EH T MFEE  REEIH FEXR
Hong Kong Domain Name Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares of 100%  Provision of “.hk” and
Registration Company Limited HKD500 each “ &% domain name
registration services
BREEZEMBRAF B 2R E B (BR500ETT) 100%  #REE[hk] K[ EEIHA
w1 PR 75
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA #5I7R)

Trade and other receivables 9 g 5 FE W AR TR R H At FE I RX
2022 2021
20224 20214
Trade receivables B 5 R $ 33,537 $ 40,245
Deposits, prepayments and other B - TBITROE R E MR UGR
receivables 5,662,857 3,591,318

$ 5,696,394 $ 3,631,563

The amount of the Group’s trade and other receivables
expected to be recovered or recognised as expenses after
more than one year is $654,659 (2021: $nil). All of the other
trade and other receivables are expected to be recovered
or recognised as expenses within one year.

Trade receivables are due within 30 days from the date of
billing. Further details on the Group'’s credit policy are set
out in note 16(a).

AEBEBRHE-FRECKERL/MAX
B 5 8 W BR R e EL At & 3K 43654,659

TL(20214F : &) - HAFTBE ZEWEER
R EH A E RS ' — & AU e ok
m\Z\E\?JFﬁEJS'Z

EHEWRRERLIRE AR 30RRA
B - AEBEEBRNEBFBERT
RHsE16(a) °

Cash and bank deposits 10 RERBITER
(@) Cash and bank deposits comprise: (a) BERBOTEFEREHE:
2022 2021
2022 20214
Bank deposits maturing after TR EREBBA=E/ 2
three months when placed HRITIFH $ 188,819,644 $ 193,882,541
Cash at bank and on hand IBITRFHERS (FREARS
(cash and cash equivalents MEXRMTHES &
in the consolidated cash flow  R&EEY)
statement) 8,435,591 7,295,518
Cash and bank deposits in the %4 BRI RFTRA
consolidated statement of R& RBITFR
financial position $ 197,255,235 $ 201,178,059
(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from (b) MEITBHELENEBZHIER:
financing activities:
The table below details changes in the Group’s TRAMAEBEKRERETH
liabilities from financing activities, including both RSy ARBEeLIIREE
cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from B MEEHMELENEBERR
financing activities are liabilities for which cash flows EMEXKRKRERERNERS
were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the MEXRTIERREMEETHR
cash flow statement as cash flows from financing EmERNEE-

activities.

ESHHAZMEEARAT 2022 FERE
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA #%7R)

10 Cash and bank deposits (continued)

S

10 BRERBITEXRE)

(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from (b) REITHEENEGEZIHE:
financing activities: (continued)

(&)

Lease
liabilities
HEEE
At 1 January 2021 R2021F181H $ 6,464,818
Changes from financing cash flows: RMERSRENEBE !
Capital element of lease rentals paid ENEEESHD $ (2,941,700)
Interest element of lease rentals paid BENEESHEHBS (259,199)
_Total changes from financing cash flows = BARERBMEDMEE $_(3,200,899)
Other change: Hihs g
Interest expenses (note 4(a)) FBHZ (H5E4(a)) $ 259,199
_Total other change AmZeesw % 259,199
At 31 December 2021 and 1 January 2022 22021512531 HK2022%181H 3,523,118

Changes from financing cash flows: RMERSRENSE !

Capital element of lease rentals paid BENEEESHS (3,011,829)

Interest element of lease rentals paid BERHESFEF S (146,196)
_Total changes from financing cash flows = BERSASMEBDER 8 (3,158,025)

Other changes: Hih# g

Interest expenses (note 4(a)) FERX (K5E4(a)) 146,196

Increase in lease liabilities from entering FREIFHEEENBESELM

into a new lease during the year 6,493,114

_Total other changes Awsees .8 6,639,310

At 31 December 2022 R2022F12 A31H 7,004,403

78 HONG KONG INTERNET REGISTRATION CORPORATION LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2022



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA #5I7R)

10 Cash and bank deposits (continued) 10 RERBITENR(E)
(c) Total cash outflow for leases (c) HERERLAER
Amounts included in the consolidated cash flow HEREREXRPAEBENR
statement for leases comprise the following: BEETIEE

2022 2021

2022 F 20214

Within financing cash flows REEREREAN $ 3,158,025 $ 3,200,899

$ 3,158,025 $ 3,200,899

11 Other payables 11 HMEESR
2022 2021
20224 20214
Accrued charges and other creditors JEETE A R HE A EM R $ 10,363,190 $ 6,462,022
Advances received SR 3,155,453 2,796,117

$ 13,518,643 $ 9,258,139

All of the other payables are expected to be settled within FREEMENREASE —FRER -
one year.

EBEMAEMEEAROT 2022 FEH/E 79
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A M RARMEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA #%7R)

12 Deferred registration income

At 31 December 2022, the deferred registration income
expected to be recognised as income is as follows:

_Within 1year N
After 1 year but within 2 years 1FZB2FK
After 2 years but within 5 years 2 1R1B5ER
After 5 years 5% 1%

IR FE S YA

R2022F12 A31H » BT MK ATET
SR THIEREERASKRALT

2022 2021
2022 F 20214

$ 21,122,702 $ 21,653,674

$ 7,972,412 $ 8,594,150
8,799,512 8,763,063
3,147,142 2,579,961

$ 19,919,066 $ 19,937,174

$ 41,041,768 $ 41,590,848

The Group typically receives full prepayments from
customers when they register internet domain names.
Fee received relating to future periods is recognised as a
contract liability and is classified as deferred registration
income in the consolidated statement of financial position.
Registration fees income is recognised over time on a
straight-line basis over the registration period of one to five
years.

Movements in contract liabilities

Balance at 1 January B 1 A1 BRI
Decrease in contract liabilities as a result of RENERBSHEA K
recognising revenue during the year that BEFHFEEA
was included in the contract liabilities at BYENEERD

the beginning of the year

Increase in contract liabilities as a result of ~HREFER UM E
receiving registration fees during the year ~ MEHA 4 & &N

AEBBTEEREPEMEBREEAE
Yo B 2 RETEAT R o U B B R SR HA R A
MERERAR/ABNARE  YHELEAME
AR P SRR RIEEEMUA - iE M &
WAE—ZERFHEMPARAE R LR
5 FEIRERR

EHEBNES
2022 2021
2022 F 20214

$ 41,590,848 $ 41,780,201

(21,653,674)  (22,188,564)

21,104,594 21,999,211

Balance at 31 December MR12 A31 B R &R

$ 41,041,768 $ 41,590,848

HONG KONG INTERNET REGISTRATION CORPORATION LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2022



13 Income tax in the consolidated statement of 13

financial position

(a)

(b)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities

recognised:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA #5I7R)

REVBRR KRR AEHR

(a) CERIAELEHREERER:

The component of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position and the movements during the year are as

AR EEEHARBRRRER
MIBERIR (A%) /B EOER
BHRAFEZBIT -

follows:

Depreciation

allowances
in excess of Future
the related benefits of
depreciation tax losses
BHEBRTEN BSE RN
mERHE RRA
Deferred tax arising from: EZERERER :
At 1 January 2021 R2021F1H1H $ 350,586 $ (350,586) $ -
(Credited)/charged to profit ~ R 182 (;tA),/ 31Kk
or loss (126,837) 126,837 -
At 31 December 2021 R2021512H31H $ 223,749 $ (223,749) $ =
At 1 January 2022 202261 H1H $ 223,749 $ (223,749) $ -
(Credited)/charged to profit ~ #¥8z (HA),/ Nk
or loss (55,150) 55,150 -
At 31 December 2022 R2022412A431H $ 168,599 § (168,599) $ =
Deferred tax assets not recognised: (b) REINEZEHEEE :

In accordance with the accounting policy set out in
note 1(k), the Group has not recognised deferred
tax assets in respect of cumulative tax losses of
$786,223 (2021: $833,730) as it is not probable
that future taxable profits against which the losses
can be utilised will be available in the relevant tax
jurisdiction and entity. The tax losses do not expire
under the current tax legislation.

BREBMEEIMEERRAT

BB 1K) PIE S ETBR -
AEEY EERBERAHBEE
$8786,223 7T (20214 : 833,730
T)WERERAEERRAREMR
ARG E L EE T RESEER
548 B R 2R B ER 5 M) O T RE 1
AR e ZHMBEIRAERITHEE
PITLESEA -

2022 FEH%
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA #%7R)

14

15

HONG KONG INTERNET REGISTRATION CORPORATION LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2022

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, so that it can continue to serve the internet
community of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region, as well as the global internet community, in relation
to the administration of the “.hk” and “.&/&" country-code
top-level domain.

The Group defines “capital” as including all components of
equity.

The Group's capital structure is regularly reviewed and
managed. Adjustments are made to the capital structure
in light of changes in economic conditions affecting
the Group, to the extent that these do not conflict with
the directors’ fiduciary duties towards the Group or the
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The Group was not subject to externally imposed capital
requirements in either the current or the prior year.

Capital and reserve

The reconciliation between the opening and closing
balances of each component of the Group’s consolidated
equity is set out in the consolidated statement of changes
in equity. Details of the changes in the Company's
individual components of equity between the beginning
and the end of the year are set out below:

Balance at 1 January 2021
Change in equity for 2021:

Profit and total comprehensive income

14

15

72021F1 81 B N&EEER

w A K 2 E s AR

EXER
AEBEREANIZANERREALAE
B sEgE  EEAUNEEREER
AMITHE R 2R BB EREH]REE
wERTEAREEE (BN .hk] R [.HFE]) A5
1 32 B 38 AR 7S o

AREBIETER | FERER T PTA AKX

B o

AEBEEHRIREREARARE X
ETEBEEHAEENTEARTH
FREARAEDPD R ENEER - BE
RS BB R E N BN EE T
HEBERRE -

AEBERFES LFEHHAZINE
FIMHVEARRTERR -

BEXKi#EE
AEBEFAEERTER N LIRS
HYEBRANGAERZZ K - AR FE

FIESBERFURFERNESFES
FEnT

Retained

profits
REBE A

$ 156,527,481

R2021 FHES BT :

255,976

Balance at 31 December 2021 and
1 January 2022

Change in equity for 2022:

Loss and total comprehensive income

BEEEEKREE

M2021FE12H831B R
2022F1 81 A &R

$ 156,783,457

R2022FWREREE) -

(5,932,803)

Balance at 31 December 2022

742022512 31 B K45 6h

$150,850,654
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A MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA #5I7R)

Financial risk management and fair values of
financial instruments

Exposure to credit, liquidity and currency risks arises in
the normal course of the Group’s business. The Group’s
exposure to these risks and the financial risk management
policies and practices used by the Group to manage these
risks are described below.

(a) Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable
to cash and deposits with banks and trade and
other receivables. Management has a credit policy
in place and exposures to these credit risks are
monitored on an ongoing basis.

The Group’s cash and deposits with banks are
placed with major financial institutions.

In respect of trade and other receivables, individual
credit evaluations are performed on all customers
requiring credit over a certain amount. These
take into account the customer’s past payments
history, financial position and other factors. Trade
receivables are due within 30 days from the date
of billings. Normally, the Group does not obtain
collateral from customers.

At the end of the reporting period, there is no
significant concentration of credit risk with respect
to trade and other receivables from third party
customers. The Group measures loss allowances for
the trade receivables at an amount equal to lifetime
ECLs (which is calculated using a provision matrix).
Due to the financial strength of its customers and
the short duration of the trade receivables, the ECL
allowance is considered insignificant.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented
by the carrying amount of cash and deposits with
banks and trade and other receivables in the
consolidated statement of financial position. The
Group does not provide any guarantees which would
expose the Group to credit risk.

16

BEEREEREMIAENAR
BEE

AEBEEREBRBRETEAREER
RBEERINERR - NREBENET
T F JE| F AACHE DA R 38 38 B 765 L B B 3B K
REERAEHILERAROFELT o

(a) fE=ERR

AEENHEERBREFERER S
FIBTTHER - UREB S EIEER
REMERR - EEEHEEE
WE - WEFEEEERLEERE
B -

AEB MRS RRITHEREFRR
RE GBI

%E%ﬁ%% X e L At UK

P AR HE E¢%ﬁ$mhﬁ%
KEEESENTEPETRERN
i - ZEFEEREFPBEEE
BERORE - BB R EMmE
R -BHRUESREZHERER

HEEFBORAEH - E—HRBER
T ARBEYESAEFREMHN
Hfm e

REER  AEERE=FTEF
B E 55 I8 W I R % L At B MR I
BEARETOHEERR - K&
BAMEERBEFENEREE
EiE(ERRERETE) NEHE
FEE S BUERREE RS -
ERNETFNUBENRESE
WEFHNERBE  BHEES
BEAEREATERYD -

AEBMAXNEERR LR
FEMBMARTRE RRTE
K~ B 5 UR R R E A e R
RBREME - AR B EBEHEM
RS AEEAREERROE
& e

EBOHMATMEEERART 2022 FERE
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A M RARMEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA #%7R)

16

Financial risk management and fair values of
financial instruments (continued)

(b)

Liquidity risk

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity
requirements and its compliance with lending
covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient
reserves of cash and readily realisable marketable
securities and adequate committed lines of funding
from major financial institutions and/or from other
group companies to meet its liquidity requirements
in the short and longer term.

The following table shows the remaining contractual
maturities at the end of the reporting period of the
Group’s financial liabilities, which are based on
contractual undiscounted cash flows (including
interest payments computed using contractual rates
or, if floating, based on rates current at the end of
the reporting period) and the earliest date the Group
can be required to pay:

16

S

BHEEREEREMIAENAR

B ()
b) RBESER

AEBENBRASEHRERER
BB RkREETERZE 2B
Mo AEREGRERRS R
BRI T 45 L B3R A0 E SR A
F@EFOATIESHBEL RE
B RRREZ RAEAHERE
BE NERNEHEERARDE
EHEF -

TREJFEETHBEREE
BEER T EMBIMBER - IR
BEOARRBERERE (BRER
AIRNER (BERFER)REER
F B HA A R ST E R A B AT R0 A
RAGEEAEFTFEXNNZEA
HmEL

Contractual undiscounted cash outflow

BRABRRERE
More than  More than

Within 1 year but 2 years but Carrying
1 year or less than less than  More than amount at
on demand 2 years 5 years 5 years 31 Dec
158 BB1FE  BB2FE M12A318
BEX kS DR5E BBE5F # HIREE
$ $ $ $ $
Lease liabilities HEBME 2,716,820 2,552,158 2,332,849 - 7,601,827 7,004,403
Other payables  E AR 13,518,643 - - - 13,518,643 13,518,643
16,235,463 2,552,158 2,332,849 - 21,120,470 20,523,046

HONG KONG INTERNET REGISTRATION CORPORATION LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2022
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA #5I7R)

Financial risk management and fair values of 16 HEEKBREEREMIANAR
financial instruments (continued) fE{E (&)
(b) Liquidity risk (continued) (b) REESRE (FE)
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
EHRMEER &R
More than More than
Within 1 year but 2 years but Carrying
1 year or on less than less than More than amount at
demand 2 years 5 years 5 years 31 Dec
¥R BA1FE  BiR2FE M12A318
REXK DR PR5E A5 F HERE(E
$ $ $ $
Lease liabilites #HEEE 2,870,322 478,800 314,139 - 3663261 3523118
Other payables EAfERFR 9,258,139 = = - 9,258,139 9,258,139
12,128,461 478,800 314,139 - 12,921,400 12,781,257
(c) Currency risk (c) MR
The Group is exposed to currency risks through REERETE TUETHED
certain transactions that are dominated in the United R MABEINE R - BB
States dollars (“USD”). As the Hong Kong dollar B TTEME - AEER BB
("HKD") is pegged to the USD, the Group considers HETEXRTGHBEEAET -
the risk of movements in exchange rate between the
HKD and the USD to be insignificant.
(d) Fair values d) 2REHE
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial R2022%F K% 2021F12831H -
instruments carried at cost or amortised cost are AN ER B IR B AN S S K AR B BR 2
not materially different from their fair values as at 31 THIAMNKEREREREQALEE
December 2022 and 2021. BBEARER -
Material related party transactions 17 EXBEBAIXS

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed

BRAMBHRREMIEDABRENRSH K

elsewhere in these financial statements during the year, the HEERON - AERERF NIRRT ETT
Group entered into the following material related parties THERRS

transactions:

2022 2021
20224 20214
Key management personnel, BEEEE  BEESF:
including directors:
— Short-term employee benefits — REHEBREF $ 4,836,288 $ 4,248,548

— REBEESHHE
EXMEHEENTK - AR
=T ESRERIAE
NEPAE (KE) $

— Capitalised lease payment payable under
lease agreements for certain internet
facilities and an office with related

companies (note) 1,942,096 -

EBOHMATMEEERART 2022 FERE
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA #%7R)

17 Material related party transactions 17
(continued)

Note:

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group has
leased certain internet facilities for a term of four years, from a
company whose director is also a director of the Company. At the
commencement date of the lease, the Group recognised a right-
of-use asset and a lease liability of $1,385,464.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group has renewed
the tenancy agreement for its office for an additional three years,
from a company whose director is also a director of the Company.
At the date of renewing the lease, the Group recognised a right-of-
use asset and a lease liability of $5,107,649.

S

EXRABLXS (&)

BaE

HZE2022F12A31AILFE  AEEEAH
—ERR(EEENAARAFES) HES
TEEESRG  AHNF - REER®BA
B AEEBRATAEEELREEESER
1,385,464 7T ©

HE2022F12A31HILFE - AEBEH
—HAR(EESNALARAES) BTHE
FERAENMRERE  AH=F - NE
FHERH  AEBEBATHBEEERA
E8EAR5,107,6497T °

18 Company-level statement of financial position 18 ZAAFZHMBEARRE
2022 2021
20224 20214
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - BB k& $ 6,246,702 $ 2,216,707
Deposits B 654,659 =
e $ 6,901,361 $ 2,216,707
Current assets REBEE
Deposits, prepayments and other e - BARREAMERK
receivables $ 3,574,359 $ 2,396,352
Cash and bank deposits B MRTTFER 194,760,483 196,178,379
S $198,334,842 $198,574,731
Current liabilities RBEE
Other payables HAth fE 19 3% $ 9,854,952 $ 5,930,018
Deferred registration income R AE S YA 16,449,463 16,915,517
Amount due to a subsidiary AR NG 6,325,583 3,459,768
Lease liabilities HEAE 1,939,724 2,336,208
. $ 34,569,722 §$ 28,641,511
Net current assets RBEEFE $163,765,120 $ 169,933,220

Total assets less current liabilities EEHABERABEE

$170,666,481 $ 172,149,927

HONG KONG INTERNET REGISTRATION CORPORATION LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2022
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA #5I7R)

Company-level statement of financial position 18 ZXATZHKEMRRRE (&)
(continued)

2022 2021
20224 20214
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Deferred registration income R FE S A A $ 15,509,828 $ 15,366,470
Lease liabilities THE/J El 4,305,999 =
e $ 19,815,827 $ 15,366,470
NET ASSETS BEEFE $150,850,654 $ 156,783,457
2022 2021
20224 20214
Representing: (A
Retained profits HRERF $ 15,850,654 $ 156,783,457
Approved and authorised for issue by the board of EEZRMN2023F4 A3 BN T A B
directors on 3 April 2023. i o
Chan Sai Ming Cheng Siu Hong
R 48 B8R R/ ER
Chairman Director
FiE Ex
Possible impact of amendments, new 19 EHZE2022F12831ALFELE
standards and interpretations issued but not FEME i R AE RIS RT - FT2EAI
yet effective for the year ended 31 December RREBURELENTE
2022
Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, HEAMBHmRETIZAEH - A S
the HKICPA has issued a number of new or amended NEDEMREZE2022F12 8318 ILF
standards, which are not yet effective for the year ended SRR - IR AR 1SRRI
31 December 2022 and which have not been adopted in ZIEFTE RIS ETAER -

these financial statements.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of $%IEE¥1$§Z%§”‘)?&EA§}’XFFH HAfE
what the impact of these developments is expected to be TEET R E - C REBERABR
in the period of initial application. So far the Group has Mz E s QT&%E/‘EEH‘JTKTE&%?QW
concluded that the adoption of them is unlikely to have a BMREEABEATE

significant impact on the consolidated financial statements.
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Registered Address and Contact Information

Address: Unit 501, Level 5, Core C, Cyberport 3,
100 Cyberport Road, Hong Kong

Tel: 2319 2303
Fax: 2319 2626
Email: info@hkirc.hk

Website: www.hkirc.hk

Board of Directors

Mr Simon CHAN Sai Ming, BBS, JP (Chairman)
Mr Gabriel PANG Tsz Kit (Deputy Chairman)
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Mr Raymond CHENG Siu Hong (Deputy Chairman)
Dr Wendy LEE Woon Ming
Mr Sean LEE Fan Fung
Dr Winnie, TANG Shuk Ming, MH, JP
Mr Charles LEE Chung Tak

(appointed on 13 May 2022)
Mr Ben LI Ming Pan

(retired on 13 May 2022)

Chief Executive Officer

Ir Wilson, WONG Ka Wai

Auditor

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

Company Secretary

Tricor Services Limited

Bankers

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Ltd.

Bank of Communications Co. Ltd. Hong Kong Branch
The Bank of East Asia, Ltd.

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corp. Ltd.
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Ltd.
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